
 

 

REGULAR MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

PUBLIC NOTICE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING  

WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 23, 2023 

12:00 P.M.  

228 TEXAS AVENUE, SUITE A, NEW BOSTON, TX 75570 

 

Notice is hereby given pursuant to V.T.C.A., Government Code, Chapter 551, that the Board of 

Directors of the Riverbend Water Resources District will conduct a meeting; open to the public, 

on Wednesday, August 23, 2023, at 12:00 p.m., at the Riverbend Water Resources District 

(“Riverbend”) office, in the Conference Room located at 228A Texas Avenue, New Boston, TX 

75570. 

The Board of Directors is authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act to convene in closed or 

executive session for certain purposes. These purposes include receiving legal advice from its 

attorney (Section 551.071); discussing real property matters (Section 551.072); discussing gifts 

and donations (Section 551.073); discussing personnel matters (Section 551.074); discussing 

security personnel or devices (Section 551.076); or discussing economic development matters 

(Section 551.087). If the Board of Directors makes a determination to go into executive session 

on any item on this agenda, the Presiding Officer will announce that an executive session will be 

held and will identify the item to be discussed and provision of the Open Meetings Act that 

authorizes the closed or executive session. 

 

A G E N D A 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL 

 

II. INVOCATION & PLEDGE 

 

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

The Board of Directors allows individuals to speak to the Board. Prior to the meeting, 

speakers must sign in on the public comment sheet. The time limit is five (5) minutes 

per speaker. Subject to the provisions set forth under Section 551.007 of the 

Government Code 

 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding July 26, 2023 Regular Meeting minutes. 

 

1



 

 

V. REGIONAL ENTITY REPORTS 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Sulphur River Basin 

Authority. 

 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with TexAmericas Center. 

 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with REDI. 

 

VI. AGENDA ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 

 

The Board of Directors will consider, discuss, and if appropriate, take action on the 

following item(s): 

 

A. Presentation and discussion regarding fluoride injection by Dr. Sandra 

Shambarger. 

 

No action required. 

 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution adopting the 

2023 Member Entities’ True-Up for use in FY 2024. 

 

TWU made their annual presentation of the Member Entities’ True-Up report on 

Wednesday, July 19th.  The proposed water production rate is shown to increase 

from $1.2341/1000 Gallons used to $1.2606/1000 Gallons used.  This is a 2.15% 

increase overall.  The administrative overhead cost is proposed to go from 6.57% 

to 6.72%.  The board can act on approving the true-up at this meeting, but typically 

has chosen not to act until the September meeting when the RWRD budget is 

considered and approved. 

 

Action item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20230823-01 approving the 

FY 2023 Member Entities’ True-Up for use in FY 2024. 

 

C. Discussion regarding the Riverbend Budgets.  

 

a. Revised 2023 Budgets for the Administrative Member Fund, the Wet 

Utilities Fund, and the Regional Water System Facilities Fund; and 

b. Proposed 2024 Budgets for Administrative Member Fund, Wet Utilities 

Fund, and the Regional Water System Facilities Fund. 

 

Presentation of Financial Statements and Draft Budget Documents by Tara Houck. 

  

No Action Required 

2



 

 

 

D. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution authorizing 

the Executive Director/CEO to enter into an agreement with Blue Cross Blue 

Shield of Texas, Principal Financial, and Ameriflex for medical, dental, vision, 

life, health reimbursement, and flex savings account benefits. 

 

As we discussed in the June board meeting, our current TML health benefit plan 

was scheduled to increase in cost by approximately 30% next year.  While the board 

authorized the Executive Director to sign the extension with TML to keep us on 

schedule with renewal, there was discussion that staff was also looking for 

alternative plans that might help keep costs lower while still providing the 

employees with similar coverage.  These proposed plans with Blue Cross Blue 

Shield of Texas, Principal Financial, and Ameriflex would provide medical, dental, 

vision, life insurance plans, health reimbursement, and flex savings account 

coverages.  These plans offer similar coverage to the current TML plans and would 

come with considerable savings on premiums costs to RWRD.  Staff recommends 

terminating our current plan with TML through a 30-day termination letter as called 

out by our contract.  Staff also recommends entering into an agreement with Blue 

Cross Blue Shield of Texas, Principal Financial, and Ameriflex for medical, dental, 

vision, life insurance, health reimbursement, and flex savings account plans 

through Bockman, Knight, & Traylor Insurance Agency, acting as broker. 

 

Action item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20230823-02 authorizing the 

Executive Director/CEO to enter into an agreement with Blue Cross Blue Shield of 

Texas and Principal Financial for medical, dental, vision, and life benefits. 

 

E. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution the 

ratification of an agreement with Tidewater Professional Services for 

engineering consulting services.  

 

At the May board meeting, we discussed that our water rights consulting contract 

with LJA would be ending, as Dawn Pilcher our consulting engineer, was leaving 

LJA to start her own firm, Tidewater Professional Services.  LJA was no longer 

able to offer us the specific consulting services that we need in dealing with our 

water rights application.  Ms. Pilcher has the knowledge and history with our 

project and funding for the project was in the current budget.  Staff working with 

legal counsel and Tidewater on a new contract to provide the water rights consulting 

services that RWRD needed.  That contract was signed by the Executive Director 

on August 14, 2023, and the task order was for a not to exceed price of $41,750.  

This total fell within the signature authority of the Executive Director, but since it 

is a new contract with Tidewater, staff wanted to bring it to the board for 

ratification.  Staff recommends approval. 

 

3



 

 

Action item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20230823-03 ratifying an 

agreement with Tidewater Professional Services for engineering consulting 

services. 

 

F. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution amending 

the Water Supply Contract with Oak Grove Water Supply Corporation.  

 

RWRD staff, along with Susan Roth, have been working with Oak Grove Water 

Supply Corporation on a request for principal forgiveness through the Texas Water 

Development Board on the Regional Water System Facilities Project.  This request 

is identical to the one that the City of Annona successfully received through TWDB 

in 2020.  On July 25, 2023, the TWDB approved Oak Grove’s request and awarded 

them $300,000 of principal forgiveness to be used on their repayment of the debt 

for the Regional Water System Facilities Project.  This awarded funding will 

require an amendment to the current water supply contract between RWRD and 

Oak Grove WSC to add language that shows that they were the recipient of the 

TWDB funding and that the funding will be utilized on a pro rata monthly basis for 

the 30 year life of the debt payback.  This amendment to the water supply contract 

would match the wording in the Annona water supply contract.  Staff recommends 

approval. 

 

Action item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20230823-04 amending the 

Water Supply Contract with Oak Grove Water Supply Corporation. 

 

VII. RIVERBEND REPORTS 

 

A. Board Members 

 

B. Executive Director/CEO 

 

VIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The Board of Directors is authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act to convene in 

closed or executive session for certain purposes. These purposes include receiving 

legal advice from its attorney (Section 551.071); discussing real property matters 

(Section 551.072); discussing gifts and donations (Section 551.073); discussing 

personnel matters (Section 551.074); discussing security personnel or devices (Section 

551.076); or discussing economic development matters (Section 551.087). If the Board 

of Directors makes a determination to go into executive session on any item on this 

agenda, the Presiding Officer will announce that an executive session will be held and 

will identify the item to be discussed and provision of the Open Meetings Act that 

authorizes the closed or executive session. 

 

4



 

 

IX. NEXT REGULAR MEETING 

 

Riverbend Regular Meeting, September 27, 2023 at 12:00 p.m. at Riverbend Offices, 

228 A Texas Avenue, New Boston, Texas 75570. 

 

X. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Kyle Dooley 

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/CEO 

Riverbend Water Resources District 

 

*Persons with disabilities who plan to attend the RWRD Board of Directors’ meeting and who 

may need auxiliary aids or services are requested to contact the RWRD Administrative Offices 

at (903) 831-0091, as soon as possible. All reasonable efforts will be taken to make the 

appropriate arrangements. 

5



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 23, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM IV. A. 

July 26, 2023  

Regular Meeting Minutes  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6



 

  

Regular Called Meeting 

Riverbend Water Resources District    

Board Meeting Minutes  

July 26, 2023 

228 Texas Avenue, Suite A, New Boston, Texas 75570   

 
M I N U T E S 

 

I. Call to Order, Roll Call, and Establishment of Quorum and Certification of   

 Notice 
 

Pursuant to a notice posted on the District website, the Chair, Van Alexander, President 

of the Board, called the meeting to order at 12:02 p.m.     

  

Directors Present: 

Van Alexander, President  

Sonja Hubbard, Secretary  

Fred Milton, Treasurer 

 

Directors Absent:  

Tina Veal-Gooch, Past President 

Steve Mayo, Vice President 

 

Administration Present: 

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/CEO 

Eli Hunt, Operations Manager 

Tara Houck, CFO 

Becky Melton, HR Manager/Executive Assistant 

          

Public Present: 

 

Please see the attached list for additional guests.  

 

II. Invocation & Pledge 

 

 Van Alexander led the invocation and the pledge of allegiance. 

 

III. Public Comments 

  

None. 

 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding the minutes for the June 28, 2023 Regular 

Meeting and the July 19, 2023 True-Up Workshop. 

7



 

  

A motion was made by Fred Milton and seconded by Sonya Hubbard to approve the 

Consent Agenda Item. The motion passed unanimously. 

 

VI. Regional Entity Reports 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Sulphur River Basin Authority 

(SRBA). 

 

No report. No action taken. 

 

Discussion and possible action regarding activities with TexAmericas Center (TAC). 

 

No report. No action taken. 

 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Ar-Tex REDI. 

 

Sonja Hubbard provided that the Arkansas side property is a front runner for a textile 

manufacturer from India. It will create 250 jobs. It is a $50 Billion project. This company 

is looking to move all operations to the United States. If financing is approved, they hope 

to get started in August or September. The Arkansas side property is the frontrunner for 

their operations. They met with Congressman Moran this week and will meet with 

Congressman Westerman next week. They are hoping to get a commitment on the matched 

funds from the state needed to lengthen and strengthen the runway at Texarkana Regional 

Airport to allow for larger planes and more frequent flights. That project will bring in the 

plane manufacturer as well as an aircraft maintenance company.  

 

No action taken. 

 

VII. Agenda Items for Individual Consideration 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approving the Third 

Quarter FY 2022 Financial Statements. 

 

Tara Houck presented the financial statements.  

 

A motion was made by Sonja Hubbard and seconded by Fred Milton to approve RESO 

20230726-01 approving the Third Quarter FY 2023 Financial Statements. The motion 

passed unanimously. 

 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approving the Third 

Quarter FY 2023 Investment Report.  

 

Tara Houck presented the investment report. 

 

8



 

  

A motion was made by Fred Milton and seconded by Sonja Hubbard to approve RESO 

20230726-02 approving the Third Quarter FY 2023 Investment Report. The motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

C. Discuss and consider adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the Issuance, Sale, and Delivery 

of Riverbend Water Resources District Contract Revenue Bonds (Regional Water System 

Project), Taxable Series 2023, and Approving and Authorizing Instruments and Procedures 

Relating thereto. 

 

Kyle Dooley provided that this item is the fifth bond resolution for our Regional Water 

System Project.  The total on this bond is $14.4 million in funding.  This funding would be 

for design, acquisition, construction, and equipment of the Regional Water System.  This 

is the third of four annual bond closings on the commitment through TWDB. In the past 

there have been two bonds presented for approval at a ratio of 60/40 on taxable vs. tax 

exempt. This bond is fully taxable. The reason for that is there were spending limits we 

had to reach on the non-taxable portion of the previous bonds that were not met due to a 

delay with the Corps among other factors. The next bond will likely offset this lack of tax 

exemption status to the tune of 80/20 tax exempt vs taxable.  

 

A motion was made by Fred Milton and seconded by Sonja Hubbard to approve RESO 

20230726-03 adopting a Resolution Authorizing the Issuance, Sale, and Delivery of 

Riverbend Water Resources District Contract Revenue Bonds (Regional Water System 

Project), Taxable Series 2023, and Approving and Authorizing Instruments and Procedures 

Relating thereto. The motion passed unanimously. 

 

D. Discussion and possible action approving a resolution authorizing the Executive 

Director/CEO to execute an amendment to the water and wastewater service agreement 

with the City of Maud, Texas. 

 

This agenda item pertains to the current RWRD/Maud water and wastewater services 

agreement.  This proposed amendment to the contract would be to update Section 3.2.e 

True-Up to match the process that both RWRD and the City of Maud would like to follow 

during the life of this contract.  It would also make this section follow more of the same 

schedule as we currently follow for the TWU True-Up process.  We think this will make 

the processes more streamlined and, if we continue to add other service contracts, will 

make it easier to follow the same timeline requirements for all contracts that require a true-

up.   

 

A motion was made by Sonja Hubbard and seconded by Fred Milton to approve RESO 

20230726-04 approving a resolution authorizing the Executive Director/CEO to execute 

an amendment to the water and wastewater service agreement with the City of Maud, 

Texas. The motion passed unanimously. 

 

E. Discussion regarding the FY 2023 Member Entities True Up for use in FY 2024. 

 

Kyle Dooley provided that TWU made their annual presentation of the Member Entities’ 

True-Up report on Wednesday, July 19th.  The proposed water production rate is shown to 

increase from $1.2341/1000 Gallons used to $1.2606/1000 Gallons used.  This is a 2.15% 

9



 

  

increase overall.  The administrative overhead cost is proposed to go from 6.57% to 6.72%.  

The board can act on approving the true-up at this meeting, but typically has chosen not to 

act until the September meeting when the RWRD budget is considered and approved. 

 

Mr. Dooley also provided that during the True-Up meeting with TWU, Riverbend 

presented an update on the debt structure rate for the new water treatment facility.  That 

rate increases effective October 1, 2023. The rate will go from $1.20/1000 gallons to 

$2.40/1000 gallons. 

 

No action taken.  

 

F. Discussion and possible action regarding the City of Maud Service Contract True-Up. 

 

RWRD and City of Maud staff met on Wednesday, July 19th, to discuss the True-Up to 

the water and wastewater services agreement.  The proposed True-Up for FY 23 results in 

an increase in the monthly contract amount for FY 24 of $1,805.98.  This would bring the 

monthly contract invoice amount for FY 24 to $13,133.98.  The board can act on approving 

the true-up at this meeting, but staff would request following the same process the board 

has followed historically with the TWU True-Up process.  Typically, the board has chosen 

not to act until the September meeting when the RWRD budget is considered and approved. 

 

No action taken. 

 

VII.   Riverbend Reports 

 

A. Board Members 

 

No reports. 

 

B. Executive Director/CEO 

Kyle Dooley provided the following updates: 

Kim Keefer with Pape-Dawson provided the following update on the Regional Water 

System Project: 

 

• The EFR, the EID, and the letter of concurrence from the USACE have been 

submitted to TWDB for review and comment. 

• The EFR will need to be submitted to several state agencies that will provide 

comments. 

o A public meeting to present the EFR is required. They are working on 

publishing a 30-day notice so that the public can attend. A full transcription 

of the meeting will be completed. That should happen within the next 30 to 

60 days. All comments made at the meeting will be addressed. Then all of 

these will be sent back to TWDB.  

• We have received the Responses to the Request for Proposals for the Various 

Design Consultants Agreements.  

o For the Intake Structure package, there were 3 submittals. 

10



 

  

o For the Raw Water Main package, there were 7 submittals. 

o For the Water Treatment Plant package, there were 5 submittals. 

o For the Finished Water Main package, there were 6 submittals. 

o Some firms submitted proposals on 3 out of 4; no firm submitted on all 4. 

So, at a minimum, we will have 2, and maybe up to four firms. 

o As a refresher, the schedule going forward is: 

• We will assist the District in reviewing the responses, and have set up 

an interview window, if needed, from August 28 to September 8. 

• We anticipate making a recommendation to the Board no later than 

the September Board meeting. 

 

Mr. Dooley has the Pape-Dawson team working on getting the remaining funds for the rest 

of the project this month. Getting the required documents to TWDB was a big step to get 

over before gathering other necessary documents to request the last of the funding for the 

project. We are starting early so that there is not a pause in funding when the project gets 

underway. 

 

Industrial Wastewater Plant: We met with RRAD command staff, the department of public 

works and the contracting office this week. We presented financial options with a 30-year 

payback on a bond, a 20-year payback bond on $25 Million as well as $30 Million. The 

$25 Million would move the plant just east of the RRAD footprint. The $30 Million would 

locate the plant near the Riverbend wastewater plant which will be the location of the new 

water treatment plant. Locating the industrial plant near our wastewater plant would make 

transmission easier if there are civilian companies brought in by TexAmericas Center that 

would need industrial wastewater treatment. They have all of those options and possibilities 

to look over and plan to make a decision on the location soon.  

 

Ultimate Rule Curve: The proposals for the Cultural Resources survey contract must be 

submitted by tomorrow. Based on the proposals, the Corps will let us know if there is a 

need for additional funding.  

 

Water Rights Application: We are still working with Dawn Pilcher on finalizing her 

contract and the updated task order. There are funds left in the budget for this project to 

complete the last of the work needed to complete the water rights application. The final 

task order will dictate if additional funds are needed which will need to be approved by the 

board.  

 

Health Insurance: We have signed our renewal with TML. That keeps us on schedule to 

have an October 1 start date for coverage. We do have a 30-day termination window with 

TML that will allow us to terminate our contract with them. We have worked with a broker 

to get us other options and compare costs. We are currently under a PPO with Blue Cross 

Blue Shield of Texas. There are not any comparable PPO plans across the board but there 

are some HMO plans that are appealing that offer lower deductibles and either match the 

benefits we have now or provide better benefits. We will keep the board posted with the 

offers we are presented with in the coming days.  

 

Mr. Dooley has also been in contact with Dr. Shambarger regarding fluoride.  Now that we 

are nearing the design of the plant, we will invite her back to discuss fluoride injection at 

11



 

  

the new plant. The membership was reminded that we will invite her to the August meeting 

so that they can have their questions answered as well as have input in the discussion. 

 

No action taken.  

 

VIII.  Executive Session 

The board did not move into Executive Session. 

 

IX.    Next Riverbend Meetings 

Riverbend Regular Meeting, August 23, 2023 at 12:00 p.m. at Riverbend Offices, 228 A 

Texas Avenue, New Boston, Texas 75570. 

 

X.  Adjournment 

 

With no additional business to be discussed, a motion was made by Fred Milton and 

seconded by Sonja Hubbard to adjourn the meeting at 1:00 p.m. The motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

The minutes of the Riverbend Water Resources District Board of Directors meeting, held on 

July 26, 2023, were read, and approved on the 23rd day of August, 2023. 

 

 

 

_______________________________________   

Van Alexander, President 

 

Attest:  

 

 

 

________________________________________  

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/ CEO 

12



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 23, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. B. 

RWRD RESO 20230823-01 

Member Entities True-Up 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13



   
 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20230823-01 

 

ADOPTING THE FY 2022-2023 MEMBER ENTITIES’ TRUE-UP  

AND WHOLESALE WATER RATES AND FEES OF THE 

TEXARKANA WATER UTILITIES 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation district 

created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 

Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is charged with oversight of the annual 

True-Up conducted amongst and between the City of Texarkana, Texas and all Member Entities; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District held an annual True-Up meeting on July 

19, 2023 at the Riverbend offices to discuss the True-Up Process and information provided by the 

City of Texarkana, Texas and its water department through Texarkana Water Utilities. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Riverbend 

Water Resources District hereby adopts the FY 2022-2023 Member Entities’ True-Up and 

wholesale water rates and fees of the Texarkana Water Utilities. 

 

 PASSED and APPROVED this 23rd day of August 2023  

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Van Alexander, President 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Sonja Hubbard, Secretary 

 

Attached: 2022-2023 Member City Rate Calculation  

14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 23, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. C. 

Budget Workshop 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

46



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 23, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Revised 2023 Budgets 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

47



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 23, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Administrative Member Fund 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

48



Account Number Account Name
Original

 Budget

Budget

 Adjustments

Final

 Budget

Fund: 10 - Admin Fund

Revenue

10-000-41000 Riverbend Fee (192,158.00) 0.00 (192,158.00)

10-000-71000 Transfer from Wet Utilities (230,000.00) 0.00 (230,000.00)

10-000-72000 Use of Prior Year Equity (182,288.00) 0.00 (182,288.00)

10-000-80000 Interest Income 0.00 (100.00) (100.00)

Revenue Total: (604,446.00) (100.00) (604,546.00)

Expense

10-000-61501 Travel Expenses 18,000.00 0.00 18,000.00

10-000-62700 Consulting 200,000.00 0.00 200,000.00

10-000-64010 Advertising 1,400.00 0.00 1,400.00

10-000-64455 Subscriptions 400.00 300.00 700.00

10-000-65000 Auditing 4,500.00 500.00 5,000.00

10-000-65064 Cell Phone (40%) 720.00 0.00 720.00

10-000-65080 Community Relations/PR 8,000.00 0.00 8,000.00

10-000-65084 Conferences & Seminars 4,700.00 0.00 4,700.00

10-000-65167 Dues & Memberships 7,883.00 1,200.00 9,083.00

10-000-65177 Engineering Misc 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00

10-000-65200 Health Insurance (40%) 8,383.00 0.00 8,383.00

10-000-65300 Legal & Professional Fees 27,500.00 (1,900.00) 25,600.00

10-000-65320 Meetings Expense 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00

10-000-65334 Military Affairs 11,000.00 0.00 11,000.00

10-000-65400 Office supplies and expense 3,300.00 0.00 3,300.00

10-000-65450 Other Employment Costs (40%) 3,140.00 0.00 3,140.00

10-000-65500 Payroll Taxes (40%) 11,544.00 0.00 11,544.00

10-000-65520 Pension (40%) 16,766.00 0.00 16,766.00

10-000-65640 Regional Planning 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00

10-000-65660 RWMP Projects 50,000.00 0.00 50,000.00

10-000-65710 Salaries & Wages (40%) 134,129.00 0.00 134,129.00

10-000-65810 Training, Travel, & Licenses (40%) 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00

10-000-65900 Unemployment Obligations (40%) 591.00 0.00 591.00

10-000-65905 Uniforms (40%) 400.00 0.00 400.00

10-000-65910 Workers Compensation (40%) 90.00 0.00 90.00

10-000-65930 Web Design & Maintenance 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00

10-000-90230 Hooks Feasibility Study 0.00 0.00 0.00

10-000-90240 Misc. Special Projects 50,000.00 0.00 50,000.00

Expense Total: 604,446.00 100.00 604,546.00

Total Admin 0.00 0.00 0.00

Riverbend Water Resources District

Proposed Amended Budget - Administrative Fund

FY 2023

49



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 23, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Wet Utilities Fund 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

50



Account Name
Original

 Budget

Budget

 Adjustments

Final

 Budget

Water

Revenue

30-001-41020 Army Revenue-Volumetric Charge (1,085,988.00) 0.00 (1,085,988.00)

30-001-41025 Army Revenue-Water Supply Charg (344,879.00) 0.00 (344,879.00)

30-001-42020 Res & Comm Rev-Volumetric Charg (38,520.00) 0.00 (38,520.00)

30-001-42030 Res & Comm Rev-Backflow Calibra (2,550.00) (1,450.00) (4,000.00)

Revenue Total: (1,471,937.00) (1,450.00) (1,473,387.00)

Expense
30-001-60055 Cell Phone 2,400.00 0.00 2,400.00

30-001-60210 Health Insurance 41,917.00 0.00 41,917.00

30-001-60250 IS Labor Wages 0.00 (7,400.00) (7,400.00)

30-001-60360 Other Employment Costs 2,200.00 0.00 2,200.00

30-001-60380 Payroll Taxes 21,099.00 0.00 21,099.00

30-001-60385 Pension 30,645.00 0.00 30,645.00

30-001-60440 Salaries & Wages 245,164.00 0.00 245,164.00

30-001-60465 Temporary Labor 2,357.00 0.00 2,357.00

30-001-60475 Training, Travel, & Licenses 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00

30-001-60500 Unemployment Obligations 2,956.00 0.00 2,956.00

30-001-60505 Uniforms 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00

30-001-60545 Workers Compensation 5,154.00 0.00 5,154.00

30-001-61000 Analyticals 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00

30-001-61005 IS Analyticals 0.00 (125.00) (125.00)

30-001-62801 Equipment Maint & Repairs 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00

30-001-62804 Fuel 6,500.00 0.00 6,500.00

30-001-62806 IS Mileage Reimbursement 0.00 (1,230.00) (1,230.00)

30-001-62900 Equipment Rental 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00

30-001-62902 IS Equipment Rental 0.00 (4,275.00) (4,275.00)

30-001-65040 Capital Replacement 177,500.00 (177,500.00) 0.00

30-001-65110 Consulting 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00

30-001-65170 Depreciation Expense 329,500.00 0.00 329,500.00

30-001-65250 Insurance 19,070.00 0.00 19,070.00

30-001-65950 Water Purchase Cost 344,879.00 0.00 344,879.00

30-001-66000 Chemicals 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00

30-001-66005 Other Materials 500.00 0.00 500.00

30-001-66100 Mileage for Call Outs 500.00 0.00 500.00

30-001-66200 Permits 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00

30-001-66300 Facilities-Other 14,000.00 6,000.00 20,000.00

30-001-66308 Lines 143,000.00 (14,000.00) 129,000.00

30-001-66312 Other Maintenance 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00

30-001-66316 Plant 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00

Riverbend Water Resources District

Proposed Amended Budget - Wet Fund

FY 2023

Account

 Number

51



Account Name
Original

 Budget

Budget

 Adjustments

Final

 Budget

Account

 Number

30-001-66503 IS Supplies 0.00 (11,300.00) (11,300.00)

30-001-66506 Other Supplies 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00

30-001-66509 Safety 3,000.00 1,000.00 4,000.00

30-001-66512 Sampling 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00

30-001-66515 Small Tools & Equipment 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00

30-001-66700 Utilities 52,000.00 (3,500.00) 48,500.00

30-001-66805 Trash 7,000.00 0.00 7,000.00

Expense Total: 1,539,341.00 (212,330.00) 1,327,011.00

Total Water 67,404.00 (213,780.00) (146,376.00)

Wastewater

Revenue
30-002-41020 Army Revenue-Volumetric Charge (951,604.00) 0.00 (951,604.00)

30-002-42020 Res & Comm Rev-Volumetric Charg (216,720.00) 0.00 (216,720.00)

Revenue Total: (1,168,324.00) 0.00 (1,168,324.00)

Expense
30-002-60055 Cell Phone 2,232.00 0.00 2,232.00

30-002-60210 Health Insurance 38,983.00 0.00 38,983.00

30-002-60250 IS Labor Wages 0.00 (3,570.00) (3,570.00)

30-002-60360 Other Employment Costs 2,046.00 0.00 2,046.00

30-002-60380 Payroll Taxes 20,549.00 0.00 20,549.00

30-002-60385 Pension 31,054.00 0.00 31,054.00

30-002-60440 Salaries & Wages 237,560.00 0.00 237,560.00

30-002-60465 Temporary Labor 2,357.00 0.00 2,357.00

30-002-60475 Training, Travel, & Licenses 5,580.00 0.00 5,580.00

30-002-60500 Unemployment Obligations 2,749.00 0.00 2,749.00

30-002-60505 Uniforms 2,790.00 0.00 2,790.00

30-002-60545 Workers Compensation 4,779.00 0.00 4,779.00

30-002-61000 Analyticals 95,000.00 0.00 95,000.00

30-002-61005 IS Analyticals 0.00 0.00 0.00

30-002-62801 Equipment Maint & Repairs 8,000.00 0.00 8,000.00

30-002-62804 Fuel 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00

30-002-62806 IS Mileage Reimbursement 0.00 (1,000.00) (1,000.00)

30-002-62900 Equipment Rental 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00

30-002-62902 IS Equipment Rental 0.00 (1,760.00) (1,760.00)

30-002-65040 Capital Replacement 183,750.00 (183,750.00) 0.00

30-002-65110 Consulting 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00

30-002-65170 Depreciation Expense 407,000.00 0.00 407,000.00

30-002-65250 Insurance 31,633.00 0.00 31,633.00

30-002-65950 Water Purchase Cost 33,178.00 0.00 33,178.00

30-002-66000 Chemicals 65,000.00 0.00 65,000.00

30-002-66005 Other Materials 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00

30-002-66100 Mileage for Call Outs 500.00 0.00 500.00

30-002-66200 Permits 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00

52



Account Name
Original

 Budget

Budget

 Adjustments

Final

 Budget

Account

 Number

30-002-66300 Facilities-Other 33,000.00 3,000.00 36,000.00

30-002-66304 IS Repairs 0.00 (400.00) (400.00)

30-002-66308 Lines 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00

30-002-66312 Other Maintenance 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00

30-002-66316 Plant 26,000.00 0.00 26,000.00

30-002-66500 Cleaning 1,200.00 0.00 1,200.00

30-002-66503 IS Supplies 0.00 (3,140.00) (3,140.00)

30-002-66506 Other Supplies 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00

30-002-66509 Safety 5,000.00 (1,000.00) 4,000.00

30-002-66512 Sampling 9,100.00 0.00 9,100.00

30-002-66515 Small Tools & Equipment 8,000.00 0.00 8,000.00

30-002-66700 Utilities 90,000.00 0.00 90,000.00

30-002-66802 Drying Bed Sludge 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00

30-002-66803 Grit 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00

Expense Total: 1,445,540.00 (191,620.00) 1,253,920.00

Total Wastewater 277,216.00 (191,620.00) 85,596.00

Industrial Wastewater

Revenue
30-003-41020 Army Revenue-Volumetric Charge (1,252,035.00) 0.00 (1,252,035.00)

30-003-45115 Army Revenue-Facility Charge 2 0.00 0.00 0.00

30-003-45120 Army Revenue-Facility Charge 3 0.00 0.00 0.00

30-003-47000 Miscellanous Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00

Revenue Total: (1,252,035.00) 0.00 (1,252,035.00)

Expense
30-003-60055 Cell Phone 2,730.00 0.00 2,730.00

30-003-60210 Health Insurance 47,681.00 0.00 47,681.00

30-003-60360 Other Employment Costs 2,503.00 0.00 2,503.00

30-003-60380 Payroll Taxes 24,398.00 0.00 24,398.00

30-003-60385 Pension 35,438.00 0.00 35,438.00

30-003-60440 Salaries & Wages 283,505.00 0.00 283,505.00

30-003-60465 Temporary Labor 2,357.00 0.00 2,357.00

30-003-60475 Training, Travel, & Licenses 6,825.00 0.00 6,825.00

30-003-60500 Unemployment Obligations 3,362.00 0.00 3,362.00

30-003-60505 Uniforms 3,413.00 0.00 3,413.00

30-003-60545 Workers Compensation 5,845.00 0.00 5,845.00

30-003-61000 Analyticals 45,000.00 0.00 45,000.00

30-003-62801 Equipment Maint & Repairs 7,000.00 0.00 7,000.00

30-003-62804 Fuel 5,500.00 0.00 5,500.00

30-003-62900 Equipment Rental 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00

30-003-65040 Capital Replacement 53,850.00 (53,850.00) 0.00

30-003-65110 Consulting 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00

30-003-65170 Depreciation Expense 63,000.00 0.00 63,000.00

30-003-65250 Insurance 3,544.00 0.00 3,544.00

53



Account Name
Original

 Budget

Budget

 Adjustments

Final

 Budget

Account

 Number

30-003-66000 Chemicals 160,000.00 0.00 160,000.00

30-003-66100 Mileage for Call Outs 500.00 0.00 500.00

30-003-66200 Permits 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00

30-003-66300 Facilities-Other 26,000.00 (9,000.00) 17,000.00

30-003-66308 Lines 1,000.00 14,000.00 15,000.00

30-003-66312 Other Maintenance 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00

30-003-66316 Plant 58,000.00 0.00 58,000.00

30-003-66500 Cleaning 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00

30-003-66506 Other Supplies 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00

30-003-66509 Safety 4,500.00 0.00 4,500.00

30-003-66512 Sampling 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00

30-003-66515 Small Tools & Equipment 8,000.00 0.00 8,000.00

30-003-66700 Utilities 46,000.00 3,500.00 49,500.00

30-003-66800 Chrome 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00

30-003-66804 Phosphate 30,000.00 0.00 30,000.00

Expense Total: 987,951.00 (45,350.00) 942,601.00

Total Industrial Wastewater (264,084.00) (45,350.00) (309,434.00)

Overhead

Revenue
30-004-45115 Army Revenue-Facility Charge 2 (569,277.00) 0.00 (569,277.00)

30-004-45120 Army Revenue-Facility Charge 3 (815,554.00) 0.00 (815,554.00)

30-004-45130 Res & Comm Rev-Facility Charge1 (119,200.00) 0.00 (119,200.00)

30-004-80000 Interest Income (14,000.00) (70,600.00) (84,600.00)

30-004-81000 Project Admin Fees (29,600.00) 29,600.00 0.00

30-004-81100 Infrastructure Services Admin Fee 0.00 (6,000.00) (6,000.00)

Revenue Total: (1,547,631.00) (47,000.00) (1,594,631.00)

Expense
30-004-60210 Health Insurance 33,534.00 0.00 33,534.00

30-004-60380 Payroll Taxes 29,164.00 0.00 29,164.00

30-004-60385 Pension 42,358.00 0.00 42,358.00

30-004-62010 Advertising 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00

30-004-62025 Auditing 23,000.00 0.00 23,000.00

30-004-62035 Building Maintenance 7,000.00 0.00 7,000.00

30-004-62055 Cell Phone 2,280.00 0.00 2,280.00

30-004-62080 Computer, Reprod & Maint 74,000.00 3,600.00 77,600.00

30-004-62220 Insurance 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00

30-004-62300 Legal & Professional Fees 25,000.00 (3,600.00) 21,400.00

30-004-62305 Licenses & Fees 300.00 0.00 300.00

30-004-62320 Meetings Expense 3,000.00 1,000.00 4,000.00

30-004-62350 Miscellaneous Fees 1,460.00 0.00 1,460.00

30-004-62355 Office supplies and expense 6,000.00 1,000.00 7,000.00

30-004-62362 Other Employment Costs 4,810.00 0.00 4,810.00

30-004-62415 Postage 2,600.00 0.00 2,600.00

54



Account Name
Original

 Budget

Budget

 Adjustments

Final

 Budget

Account

 Number

30-004-62440 Salaries & Wages 338,866.00 0.00 338,866.00

30-004-62475 Training, Travel, & Licenses 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00

30-004-62495 Travel 5,600.00 (2,000.00) 3,600.00

30-004-62500 Unemployment Obligations 2,364.00 0.00 2,364.00

30-004-62505 Uniforms 1,600.00 0.00 1,600.00

30-004-62510 Utilities-OH 13,000.00 0.00 13,000.00

30-004-62545 Workers Compensation 360.00 0.00 360.00

30-004-62550 Wright Express Fees 240.00 0.00 240.00

30-004-64030 Bank Service Charges 0.00 400.00 400.00

30-004-65002 Accounting 0.00 350.00 350.00

30-004-90100 Bond Interest Expense 266,151.00 0.00 266,151.00

30-004-90130 IWWTP Bond Interest Expense 179,733.00 (179,733.00) 0.00

30-004-90430 Franchise Fees to TAC 109,035.00 0.00 109,035.00

30-004-90440 Gain/(Loss) On Disposal of Asset 0.00 26,000.00 26,000.00

30-004-90490 Transfer to Admin Fund 230,000.00 0.00 230,000.00

Expense Total: 1,410,455.00 (152,983.00) 1,257,472.00

Total Overhead (137,176.00) (199,983.00) (337,159.00)

Infrastructure Services

Revenue
30-005-45300 Infrastructure Services Revenue (102,679.00) 0.00 (102,679.00)

30-005-81100 Infrastructure Services Admin Fee (12,321.00) 0.00 (12,321.00)

Revenue Total: (115,000.00) 0.00 (115,000.00)

Expense
30-005-60055 Cell Phone 438.00 0.00 438.00

30-005-60210 Health Insurance 7,650.00 0.00 7,650.00

30-005-60360 Other Employment Costs 401.00 0.00 401.00

30-005-60380 Payroll Taxes 3,363.00 0.00 3,363.00

30-005-60385 Pension 3,676.00 0.00 3,676.00

30-005-60440 Salaries & Wages 40,280.00 0.00 40,280.00

30-005-60475 Training, Travel & Licenses 1,095.00 0.00 1,095.00

30-005-60500 Unemployment Obligations 539.00 0.00 539.00

30-005-60505 Uniforms 548.00 0.00 548.00

30-005-60545 Workers Compensation 938.00 0.00 938.00

30-005-61000 Analyticals - WW 0.00 0.00 0.00

30-005-61001 Analyticals - W 0.00 0.00 0.00

30-005-62804 Fuel 7,751.00 0.00 7,751.00

30-005-62900 Equipment Rental 0.00 0.00 0.00

30-005-66506 Supplies - WW 36,000.00 0.00 36,000.00

30-005-66507 Supplies - W 0.00 0.00 0.00

Expense Total: 102,679.00 0.00 102,679.00

Total Infrastructure Services (12,321.00) 0.00 (12,321.00)

Wet Fund Total: (68,961.00) (650,733.00) (719,694.00)

55



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 23, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regional Water System Facilities Fund 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

56



Original Budget Current

FY 2023 Amendments FY 2023

Minimum Monthly Payments $4,296,050 $0 $4,296,050

Bond Proceeds 0 0 0

Bond Disbursements 0 0 0

Subtotal Revenue (Expenses) 4,296,050 0 4,296,050

Interest Income 1,191,063 970,000 2,161,063

Unrealized Gain/(Loss) (538,532) 1,016,897 478,365

Bond Issuance Costs (225,000) (226,895) (451,895)

Interest Expense (1,565,230) 0 (1,565,230)

Wire Fees 0 (2,000) (2,000)

Total Revenue (Expenses) $3,158,351 $1,758,002 $4,916,353

Debt Service for 2024 = $5,018,132

Riverbend Water Resources District

Regional Water System Facilities Fund - Proposed Amended Budget 

FY 2023

57



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 23, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Proposed 2024 Budgets 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

58



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 23, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Administrative Member Fund 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

59



Account Number Account Name FY2023 FY2024

Increase /

(Decrease) % Change

Fund: 10 - Admin Fund

Revenue

10-000-41000 Riverbend Fee 192,158 221,158 29,000 15.09

10-000-71000 Transfer from Wet Utilities 230,000 230,000 0 0.00

10-000-72000 Use of Prior Year Equity 182,288 163,801 (18,487) -10.14

10-000-80000 Interest Income 100 100 0 0.00

Total Revenue: 604,546 631,446 10,513 1.74

Expense

10-000-61501 Travel Expenses 18,000 18,000 0 0.00

10-000-62700 Consulting 200,000 200,000 0 0.00

10-000-64010 Advertising 1,200 1,200 0 0.00

10-000-64030 Bank Service Fees 100 100 0 0.00

10-000-64455 Subscriptions 800 800 0 0.00

10-000-65000 Auditing 5,000 5,000 0 0.00

10-000-65064 Cell Phone (40%) 720 748 28 3.89

10-000-65080 Community Relations/PR 8,000 8,000 0 0.00

10-000-65084 Conferences & Seminars 4,700 4,700 0 0.00

10-000-65167 Dues & Memberships 9,083 9,083 0 0.00

10-000-65177 Engineering Misc 20,000 20,000 0 0.00

10-000-65200 Health Insurance (40%) 8,383 8,403 20 0.24

10-000-65300 Legal & Professional Fees 25,600 27,500 1,900 7.42

10-000-65320 Meetings Expense 6,000 6,000 0 0.00

10-000-65334 Military Affairs 11,000 11,000 0 0.00

10-000-65400 Office supplies and expense 3,300 3,300 0 0.00

10-000-65450 Other Employment Costs (40%) 3,140 3,140 0 0.00

10-000-65500 Payroll Taxes (40%) 11,544 12,155 611 5.29

10-000-65520 Pension (40%) 16,766 17,655 889 5.30

10-000-65640 Regional Planning 10,000 10,000 0 0.00

10-000-65660 RWMP Projects 50,000 50,000 0 0.00

10-000-65710 Salaries & Wages (40%) 134,129 141,236 7,107 5.30

10-000-65810 Training, Travel, & Licenses (40%) 2,000 2,000 0 0.00

10-000-65900 Unemployment Obligations (40%) 591 591 0 0.00

10-000-65905 Uniforms (40%) 400 400 0 0.00

10-000-65910 Workers Compensation (40%) 90 48 (42) -46.67

10-000-65930 Web Design & Maintenance 4,000 4,000 0 0.00

10-000-90240 Misc. Special Projects 50,000 50,000 0 0.00

Total Expense: 604,546 615,059 10,513 1.74

Total Fund: 10 - Admin Fund: 0 0 0 0.00

Riverbend Water Resources District

Draft Proposed FY 2024 Budget - Admin Fund

60



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 23, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Wet Utilities Fund 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

61



Account Number Account Name FY2023 FY2024

Increase /

(Decrease) % Change

Fund: 30 - Wet Fund

Department: 001 - Water

Revenue

30-001-41020 Army Revenue-Volumetric Charge 1,085,988 1,068,299 (17,689) -1.63

30-001-41025 Army Revenue-Water Supply Charg 344,879 256,100 (88,779) -25.74

30-001-42020 Res & Comm Rev-Volumetric Charg 38,520 38,520 0 0.00

30-001-42030 Res & Comm Rev-Backflow Calibra 4,000 4,000 0 0.00

Total Revenue: 1,473,387 1,366,919 (106,468) 0.00

Expense

30-001-60055 Cell Phone 2,400 2,680 280 11.67

30-001-60210 Health Insurance 41,917 42,017 100 0.24

30-001-60250 IS Labor Wages (7,400) 0 7,400 -100.00

30-001-60360 Other Employment Costs 2,200 2,200 0 0.00

30-001-60380 Payroll Taxes 21,099 22,949 1,850 8.77

30-001-60385 Pension 30,645 33,333 2,688 8.77

30-001-60440 Salaries & Wages 245,164 266,661 21,497 8.77

30-001-60465 Temporary Labor 2,357 2,357 0 0.00

30-001-60475 Training, Travel, & Licenses 6,000 6,000 0 0.00

30-001-60500 Unemployment Obligations 2,956 2,956 0 0.00

30-001-60505 Uniforms 3,000 3,000 0 0.00

30-001-60545 Workers Compensation 5,154 3,607 (1,547) -30.02

30-001-61000 Analyticals 10,000 10,000 0 0.00

30-001-61005 IS Analyticals (125) 0 125 -100.00

30-001-62801 Equipment Maint & Repairs 10,000 10,000 0 0.00

30-001-62804 Fuel 15,000 15,000 0 0.00

30-001-62806 IS Mileage Reimbursement (1,230) 0 1,230 -100.00

30-001-62900 Equipment Rental 4,000 4,000 0 0.00

30-001-62902 IS Equipment Rental (4,275) 0 4,275 -100.00

30-001-65040 Capital Replacement 0 135,000 135,000 0.00

30-001-65110 Consulting 20,000 20,000 0 0.00

30-001-65170 Depreciation Expense 329,500 329,500 0 0.00

30-001-65250 Insurance 19,070 23,604 4,534 23.78

30-001-65950 Water Purchase Cost 344,879 256,100 (88,779) -25.74

30-001-66000 Chemicals 16,000 16,000 0 0.00

30-001-66005 Other Materials 500 500 0 0.00

30-001-66100 Mileage for Call Outs 500 500 0 0.00

30-001-66200 Permits 13,000 13,000 0 0.00

30-001-66300 Facilities-Other 13,000 13,000 0 0.00

30-001-66308 Lines 102,500 102,500 0 0.00

30-001-66312 Other Maintenance 5,000 5,000 0 0.00

30-001-66316 Plant 8,500 8,500 0 0.00

30-001-66503 IS Supplies (11,300) 0 11,300 -100.00

30-001-66506 Other Supplies 2,500 2,500 0 0.00

30-001-66509 Safety 4,000 4,000 0 0.00

30-001-66512 Sampling 12,000 12,000 0 0.00

30-001-66515 Small Tools & Equipment 1,500 1,500 0 0.00

30-001-66700 Utilities 48,500 48,500 0 0.00

30-001-66805 Trash 7,000 7,000 0 0.00

Total Expense: 1,325,511 1,425,464 99,953 0.00

Total Department: 001 - Water: 147,876 (58,545) (206,421) 0.00

Riverbend Water Resources District

Draft Proposed FY 2024 Budget - Wet Fund

62



Account Number Account Name FY2023 FY2024

Increase /

(Decrease) % Change

Department: 002 - Wastewater

Revenue

30-002-41020 Army Revenue-Volumetric Charge 951,604 978,073 26,469 2.78

30-002-42020 Res & Comm Rev-Volumetric Charg 216,720 216,720 0 0.00

30-002-47000 Miscellanous Revenue 0 0 0 0.00

Total Revenue: 1,168,324 1,194,793 26,469 0.00

Expense

30-002-60055 Cell Phone 2,232 2,311 79 3.54

30-002-60210 Health Insurance 38,983 36,239 (2,744) -7.04

30-002-60250 IS Labor Wages (3,570) 0 3,570 -100.00

30-002-60360 Other Employment Costs 2,046 1,897 (149) -7.28

30-002-60380 Payroll Taxes 20,549 21,209 660 3.21

30-002-60385 Pension 31,054 30,805 (249) -0.80

30-002-60440 Salaries & Wages 237,560 246,436 8,876 3.74

30-002-60465 Temporary Labor 2,357 2,357 (0) -0.01

30-002-60475 Training, Travel, & Licenses 5,580 5,175 (405) -7.26

30-002-60500 Unemployment Obligations 2,749 2,549 (200) -7.28

30-002-60505 Uniforms 2,790 2,588 (202) -7.24

30-002-60545 Workers Compensation 4,779 3,092 (1,687) -35.30

30-002-61000 Analyticals 95,000 95,000 0 0.00

30-002-62801 Equipment Maint & Repairs 8,000 8,000 0 0.00

30-002-62804 Fuel 5,000 5,000 0 0.00

30-002-62806 IS Mileage Reimbursement (1,000) 0 1,000 -100.00

30-002-62900 Equipment Rental 5,000 5,000 0 0.00

30-002-62902 IS Equipment Rental (1,760) 0 1,760 -100.00

30-002-65040 Capital Replacement 0 135,000 135,000 0.00

30-002-65110 Consulting 20,000 20,000 0 0.00

30-002-65170 Depreciation Expense 407,000 407,000 0 0.00

30-002-65250 Insurance 19,633 23,880 4,247 21.63

30-002-65950 Water Purchase Cost 33,178 22,000 (11,178) -33.69

30-002-66000 Chemicals 72,500 72,500 0 0.00

30-002-66005 Other Materials 1,500 1,500 0 0.00

30-002-66100 Mileage for Call Outs 500 500 0 0.00

30-002-66200 Permits 17,500 17,500 0 0.00

30-002-66300 Facilities-Other 22,500 22,500 0 0.00

30-002-66304 IS Repairs (400) 0 400 -100.00

30-002-66308 Lines 4,000 4,000 0 0.00

30-002-66312 Other Maintenance 5,000 5,000 0 0.00

30-002-66316 Plant 32,500 32,500 0 0.00

30-002-66500 Cleaning 1,700 1,700 0 0.00

30-002-66503 IS Supplies (3,140) 0 3,140 -100.00

30-002-66506 Other Supplies 7,500 7,500 0 0.00

30-002-66509 Safety 4,000 4,000 0 0.00

30-002-66512 Sampling 22,600 22,600 0 0.00

30-002-66515 Small Tools & Equipment 5,000 5,000 0 0.00

30-002-66700 Utilities 90,000 90,000 0 0.00

30-002-66802 Drying Bed Sludge 13,500 13,500 0 0.00

30-002-66803 Grit 5,500 5,500 0 0.00

Total Expense: 1,239,420 1,381,338 141,918 0.00

Total Department: 002 - Wastewater: (71,096) (186,545) (115,449) 0.00

63



Account Number Account Name FY2023 FY2024

Increase /

(Decrease) % Change

Department: 003 - Industrial Wastewater

Revenue

30-003-41020 Army Revenue-Volumetric Charge 1,252,035 1,254,775 2,740 0.22

Total Revenue: 1,252,035 1,254,775 2,740 0.22

Expense

30-003-60055 Cell Phone 2,730 3,048 318 11.65

30-003-60210 Health Insurance 47,681 47,794 113 0.24

30-003-60360 Other Employment Costs 2,503 2,503 0 0.00

30-003-60380 Payroll Taxes 24,398 26,229 1,831 7.50

30-003-60385 Pension 35,438 38,096 2,658 7.50

30-003-60440 Salaries & Wages 283,505 304,769 21,264 7.50

30-003-60465 Temporary Labor 2,357 2,357 0 0.00

30-003-60475 Training, Travel, & Licenses 6,825 6,825 0 0.00

30-003-60500 Unemployment Obligations 3,362 3,362 0 0.00

30-003-60505 Uniforms 3,413 3,412 (1) -0.03

30-003-60545 Workers Compensation 5,845 4,077 (1,768) -30.25

30-003-61000 Analyticals 45,000 45,000 0 0.00

30-003-62801 Equipment Maint & Repairs 7,000 7,000 0 0.00

30-003-62804 Fuel 7,000 7,000 0 0.00

30-003-62900 Equipment Rental 2,000 2,000 0 0.00

30-003-65040 Capital Replacement 0 0 0 0.00

30-003-65110 Consulting 20,000 20,000 0 0.00

30-003-65170 Depreciation Expense 63,000 63,000 0 0.00

30-003-65250 Insurance 18,044 22,755 4,711 26.11

30-003-66000 Chemicals 160,000 160,000 0 0.00

30-003-66100 Mileage for Call Outs 500 500 0 0.00

30-003-66200 Permits 20,000 20,000 0 0.00

30-003-66300 Facilities-Other 12,500 12,500 0 0.00

30-003-66308 Lines 15,000 15,000 0 0.00

30-003-66312 Other Maintenance 2,000 2,000 0 0.00

30-003-66316 Plant 58,000 58,000 0 0.00

30-003-66500 Cleaning 1,000 1,000 0 0.00

30-003-66506 Other Supplies 1,000 1,000 0 0.00

30-003-66509 Safety 4,500 4,500 0 0.00

30-003-66512 Sampling 6,500 6,500 0 0.00

30-003-66515 Small Tools & Equipment 8,000 8,000 0 0.00

30-003-66700 Utilities 59,500 59,500 0 0.00

30-003-66800 Chrome 10,000 10,000 0 0.00

30-003-66804 Phosphate 20,000 20,000 0 0.00

Total Expense: 958,601 987,727 29,126 0.00

Total Department: 003 - Industrial Wastewater: 293,434 267,048 (26,386) 0.00

Department: 004 - Overhead

Revenue

30-004-45115 Army Revenue-Facility Charge 2 569,277 569,277 0 0.00

30-004-45120 Army Revenue-Facility Charge 3 815,554 815,554 0 0.00

30-004-45130 Res & Comm Rev-Facility Charge1 119,200 119,200 0 0.00

30-004-47000 Miscellanous Revenue 0 0 0 0.00

30-004-80000 Interest Income 84,600 84,600 0 0.00

30-004-81100 Infrastructure Services Admin Fee 6,000 6,000 0 0.00

Total Revenue: 1,594,631 1,594,631 0 0.00

64



Account Number Account Name FY2023 FY2024

Increase /

(Decrease) % Change

Expense

30-004-60210 Health Insurance 33,534 33,613 79 0.24

30-004-60380 Payroll Taxes 29,164 31,003 1,839 6.31

30-004-60385 Pension 42,358 45,031 2,673 6.31

30-004-62010 Advertising 2,000 2,000 0 0.00

30-004-62025 Auditing 23,000 23,000 0 0.00

30-004-62035 Building Maintenance 7,000 7,000 0 0.00

30-004-62055 Cell Phone 2,280 2,462 182 7.98

30-004-62080 Computer, Reprod & Maint 77,600 77,600 0 0.00

30-004-62220 Insurance 1,000 1,000 0 0.00

30-004-62300 Legal & Professional Fees 21,400 21,400 0 0.00

30-004-62305 Licenses & Fees 300 300 0 0.00

30-004-62320 Meetings Expense 4,000 4,000 0 0.00

30-004-62350 Miscellaneous Fees 1,460 1,460 0 0.00

30-004-62355 Office supplies and expense 7,000 7,000 0 0.00

30-004-62362 Other Employment Costs 4,810 4,810 0 0.00

30-004-62415 Postage 2,600 2,600 0 0.00

30-004-62440 Salaries & Wages 338,866 360,244 21,378 6.31

30-004-62475 Training, Travel, & Licenses 6,000 6,000 0 0.00

30-004-62495 Travel 3,600 3,600 0 0.00

30-004-62500 Unemployment Obligations 2,364 2,365 1 0.04

30-004-62505 Uniforms 1,600 1,600 0 0.00

30-004-62510 Utilities-OH 13,000 13,000 0 0.00

30-004-62545 Workers Compensation 360 190 (170) -47.22

30-004-62550 Wright Express Fees 240 240 0 0.00

30-004-64030 Bank Service Charges 400 400 0 0.00

30-004-65002 Accounting 350 350 0 0.00

30-004-90100 Bond Interest Expense 266,151 266,151 0 0.00

30-004-90430 Franchise Fees to TAC 109,035 106,717 (2,318) -2.13

30-004-90440 Gain/(Loss) On Disposal of Asset 26,000 0 (26,000) -100.00

30-004-90490 Transfer to Admin Fund 230,000 230,000 0 0.00

Total Expense: 1,257,472 1,255,136 (2,336) 0.00

Total Department: 004 - Overhead: 337,159 339,495 2,336 0.00

Department: 005 - Infrastructure Services

Revenue

30-005-45300 Infrastructure Services Revenue 102,679 123,619 20,940 20.39

30-005-81100 Infrastructure Services Admin Fee 12,321 12,321 0 0.00

Total Revenue: 115,000 135,940 20,940 0.00

Expense

30-005-60055 Cell Phone 438 438 0 0.00

30-005-60210 Health Insurance 7,650 7,650 0 0.00

30-005-60360 Other Employment Costs 401 401 0 0.00

30-005-60380 Payroll Taxes 3,363 3,363 0 0.00

30-005-60385 Pension 3,676 3,676 0 0.00

30-005-60440 Salaries & Wages 40,280 61,220 20,940 51.99

30-005-60475 Training, Travel & Licenses 1,095 1,095 0 0.00

30-005-60500 Unemployment Obligations 539 539 0 0.00

30-005-60505 Uniforms 548 548 0 0.00

30-005-60545 Workers Compensation 938 938 0 0.00

30-005-61000 Analyticals - WW 10,500 10,500 0 0.00

30-005-61001 Analyticals - W 0 0 0 0.00

65



Account Number Account Name FY2023 FY2024

Increase /

(Decrease) % Change

30-005-62804 Fuel 7,751 7,751 0 0.00

30-005-66506 Supplies - WW 25,500 25,500 0 0.00

30-005-66507 Supplies - W 0 0 0 0.00

Total Expense: 102,679 123,619 20,940 0.00

Total Department: 005 - Infrastructure Services: 12,321 12,321 0 0.00

Total Fund: 30 - Wet Fund: 719,694 373,774 (345,920) 0.00

Debt Service for 2024 = $700,288

66



Account Number Account Name FY2023 FY2024

Increase /

(Decrease) % Change

Department: 002 - Wastewater

Revenue

30-002-41020 Army Revenue-Volumetric Charge 951,604 978,073 26,469 2.78

30-002-42020 Res & Comm Rev-Volumetric Charg 216,720 216,720 0 0.00

30-002-47000 Miscellanous Revenue 0 0 0 0.00

Total Revenue: 1,168,324 1,194,793 26,469 0.00

Expense

30-002-60055 Cell Phone 2,232 2,311 79 3.54

30-002-60210 Health Insurance 38,983 36,239 (2,744) -7.04

30-002-60250 IS Labor Wages (3,570) 0 3,570 -100.00

30-002-60360 Other Employment Costs 2,046 1,897 (149) -7.28

30-002-60380 Payroll Taxes 20,549 21,209 660 3.21

30-002-60385 Pension 31,054 30,805 (249) -0.80

30-002-60440 Salaries & Wages 237,560 246,436 8,876 3.74

30-002-60465 Temporary Labor 2,357 2,357 (0) -0.01

30-002-60475 Training, Travel, & Licenses 5,580 5,175 (405) -7.26

30-002-60500 Unemployment Obligations 2,749 2,549 (200) -7.28

30-002-60505 Uniforms 2,790 2,588 (202) -7.24

30-002-60545 Workers Compensation 4,779 3,092 (1,687) -35.30

30-002-61000 Analyticals 95,000 95,000 0 0.00

30-002-62801 Equipment Maint & Repairs 8,000 8,000 0 0.00

30-002-62804 Fuel 5,000 5,000 0 0.00

30-002-62806 IS Mileage Reimbursement (1,000) 0 1,000 -100.00

30-002-62900 Equipment Rental 5,000 5,000 0 0.00

30-002-62902 IS Equipment Rental (1,760) 0 1,760 -100.00

30-002-65040 Capital Replacement 0 135,000 135,000 0.00

30-002-65110 Consulting 20,000 20,000 0 0.00

30-002-65170 Depreciation Expense 407,000 407,000 0 0.00

30-002-65250 Insurance 19,633 23,880 4,247 21.63

30-002-65950 Water Purchase Cost 33,178 22,000 (11,178) -33.69

30-002-66000 Chemicals 72,500 72,500 0 0.00

30-002-66005 Other Materials 1,500 1,500 0 0.00

30-002-66100 Mileage for Call Outs 500 500 0 0.00

30-002-66200 Permits 17,500 17,500 0 0.00

30-002-66300 Facilities-Other 22,500 22,500 0 0.00

30-002-66304 IS Repairs (400) 0 400 -100.00

30-002-66308 Lines 4,000 4,000 0 0.00

30-002-66312 Other Maintenance 5,000 5,000 0 0.00

30-002-66316 Plant 32,500 32,500 0 0.00

30-002-66500 Cleaning 1,700 1,700 0 0.00

30-002-66503 IS Supplies (3,140) 0 3,140 -100.00

30-002-66506 Other Supplies 7,500 7,500 0 0.00

30-002-66509 Safety 4,000 4,000 0 0.00

30-002-66512 Sampling 22,600 22,600 0 0.00

30-002-66515 Small Tools & Equipment 5,000 5,000 0 0.00

30-002-66700 Utilities 90,000 90,000 0 0.00

30-002-66802 Drying Bed Sludge 13,500 13,500 0 0.00

30-002-66803 Grit 5,500 5,500 0 0.00

Total Expense: 1,239,420 1,381,338 141,918 0.00

Total Department: 002 - Wastewater: (71,096) (186,545) (115,449) 0.00

67



Account Number Account Name FY2023 FY2024

Increase /

(Decrease) % Change

Department: 003 - Industrial Wastewater

Revenue

30-003-41020 Army Revenue-Volumetric Charge 1,252,035 1,254,775 2,740 0.22

Total Revenue: 1,252,035 1,254,775 2,740 0.22

Expense

30-003-60055 Cell Phone 2,730 3,048 318 11.65

30-003-60210 Health Insurance 47,681 47,794 113 0.24

30-003-60360 Other Employment Costs 2,503 2,503 0 0.00

30-003-60380 Payroll Taxes 24,398 26,229 1,831 7.50

30-003-60385 Pension 35,438 38,096 2,658 7.50

30-003-60440 Salaries & Wages 283,505 304,769 21,264 7.50

30-003-60465 Temporary Labor 2,357 2,357 0 0.00

30-003-60475 Training, Travel, & Licenses 6,825 6,825 0 0.00

30-003-60500 Unemployment Obligations 3,362 3,362 0 0.00

30-003-60505 Uniforms 3,413 3,412 (1) -0.03

30-003-60545 Workers Compensation 5,845 4,077 (1,768) -30.25

30-003-61000 Analyticals 45,000 45,000 0 0.00

30-003-62801 Equipment Maint & Repairs 7,000 7,000 0 0.00

30-003-62804 Fuel 7,000 7,000 0 0.00

30-003-62900 Equipment Rental 2,000 2,000 0 0.00

30-003-65040 Capital Replacement 0 0 0 0.00

30-003-65110 Consulting 20,000 20,000 0 0.00

30-003-65170 Depreciation Expense 63,000 63,000 0 0.00

30-003-65250 Insurance 18,044 22,755 4,711 26.11

30-003-66000 Chemicals 160,000 160,000 0 0.00

30-003-66100 Mileage for Call Outs 500 500 0 0.00

30-003-66200 Permits 20,000 20,000 0 0.00

30-003-66300 Facilities-Other 12,500 12,500 0 0.00

30-003-66308 Lines 15,000 15,000 0 0.00

30-003-66312 Other Maintenance 2,000 2,000 0 0.00

30-003-66316 Plant 58,000 58,000 0 0.00

30-003-66500 Cleaning 1,000 1,000 0 0.00

30-003-66506 Other Supplies 1,000 1,000 0 0.00

30-003-66509 Safety 4,500 4,500 0 0.00

30-003-66512 Sampling 6,500 6,500 0 0.00

30-003-66515 Small Tools & Equipment 8,000 8,000 0 0.00

30-003-66700 Utilities 59,500 59,500 0 0.00

30-003-66800 Chrome 10,000 10,000 0 0.00

30-003-66804 Phosphate 20,000 20,000 0 0.00

Total Expense: 958,601 987,727 29,126 0.00

Total Department: 003 - Industrial Wastewater: 293,434 267,048 (26,386) 0.00

Department: 004 - Overhead

Revenue

30-004-45115 Army Revenue-Facility Charge 2 569,277 569,277 0 0.00

30-004-45120 Army Revenue-Facility Charge 3 815,554 815,554 0 0.00

30-004-45130 Res & Comm Rev-Facility Charge1 119,200 119,200 0 0.00

30-004-47000 Miscellanous Revenue 0 0 0 0.00

30-004-80000 Interest Income 84,600 84,600 0 0.00

30-004-81100 Infrastructure Services Admin Fee 6,000 6,000 0 0.00

Total Revenue: 1,594,631 1,594,631 0 0.00

68



Account Number Account Name FY2023 FY2024

Increase /

(Decrease) % Change

Expense

30-004-60210 Health Insurance 33,534 33,613 79 0.24

30-004-60380 Payroll Taxes 29,164 31,003 1,839 6.31

30-004-60385 Pension 42,358 45,031 2,673 6.31

30-004-62010 Advertising 2,000 2,000 0 0.00

30-004-62025 Auditing 23,000 23,000 0 0.00

30-004-62035 Building Maintenance 7,000 7,000 0 0.00

30-004-62055 Cell Phone 2,280 2,462 182 7.98

30-004-62080 Computer, Reprod & Maint 77,600 77,600 0 0.00

30-004-62220 Insurance 1,000 1,000 0 0.00

30-004-62300 Legal & Professional Fees 21,400 21,400 0 0.00

30-004-62305 Licenses & Fees 300 300 0 0.00

30-004-62320 Meetings Expense 4,000 4,000 0 0.00

30-004-62350 Miscellaneous Fees 1,460 1,460 0 0.00

30-004-62355 Office supplies and expense 7,000 7,000 0 0.00

30-004-62362 Other Employment Costs 4,810 4,810 0 0.00

30-004-62415 Postage 2,600 2,600 0 0.00

30-004-62440 Salaries & Wages 338,866 360,244 21,378 6.31

30-004-62475 Training, Travel, & Licenses 6,000 6,000 0 0.00

30-004-62495 Travel 3,600 3,600 0 0.00

30-004-62500 Unemployment Obligations 2,364 2,365 1 0.04

30-004-62505 Uniforms 1,600 1,600 0 0.00

30-004-62510 Utilities-OH 13,000 13,000 0 0.00

30-004-62545 Workers Compensation 360 190 (170) -47.22

30-004-62550 Wright Express Fees 240 240 0 0.00

30-004-64030 Bank Service Charges 400 400 0 0.00

30-004-65002 Accounting 350 350 0 0.00

30-004-90100 Bond Interest Expense 266,151 266,151 0 0.00

30-004-90430 Franchise Fees to TAC 109,035 106,717 (2,318) -2.13

30-004-90440 Gain/(Loss) On Disposal of Asset 26,000 0 (26,000) -100.00

30-004-90490 Transfer to Admin Fund 230,000 230,000 0 0.00

Total Expense: 1,257,472 1,255,136 (2,336) 0.00

Total Department: 004 - Overhead: 337,159 339,495 2,336 0.00

Department: 005 - Infrastructure Services

Revenue

30-005-45300 Infrastructure Services Revenue 102,679 123,619 20,940 20.39

30-005-81100 Infrastructure Services Admin Fee 12,321 12,321 0 0.00

Total Revenue: 115,000 135,940 20,940 0.00

Expense

30-005-60055 Cell Phone 438 438 0 0.00

30-005-60210 Health Insurance 7,650 7,650 0 0.00

30-005-60360 Other Employment Costs 401 401 0 0.00

30-005-60380 Payroll Taxes 3,363 3,363 0 0.00

30-005-60385 Pension 3,676 3,676 0 0.00

30-005-60440 Salaries & Wages 40,280 61,220 20,940 51.99

30-005-60475 Training, Travel & Licenses 1,095 1,095 0 0.00

30-005-60500 Unemployment Obligations 539 539 0 0.00

30-005-60505 Uniforms 548 548 0 0.00

30-005-60545 Workers Compensation 938 938 0 0.00

30-005-61000 Analyticals - WW 10,500 10,500 0 0.00

30-005-61001 Analyticals - W 0 0 0 0.00

69



Account Number Account Name FY2023 FY2024

Increase /

(Decrease) % Change

30-005-62804 Fuel 7,751 7,751 0 0.00

30-005-66506 Supplies - WW 25,500 25,500 0 0.00

30-005-66507 Supplies - W 0 0 0 0.00

Total Expense: 102,679 123,619 20,940 0.00

Total Department: 005 - Infrastructure Services: 12,321 12,321 0 0.00

Total Fund: 30 - Wet Fund: 719,694 373,774 (345,920) 0.00

Debt Service for 2024 = $700,288

70



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 23, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regional Water System Facilities Fund 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

71



Budget Budget Proposed

FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

Minimum Monthly Payments $4,296,050 $4,296,050 $8,617,448

Bond Proceeds 103,891,205 0 0

Bond Disbursements (103,891,205) 0 0

Subtotal Revenue (Expenses) 4,296,050 4,296,050 8,617,448

Interest Income 85,000 2,161,063 1,385,180

Unrealized Gain/(Loss) 0 478,365 0

Bond Issuance Costs (2,380,000) (451,895) (1,492,000)

Interest Expense (743,455) (1,565,230) (1,868,132)

Wire Fees 0 (2,000) (2,000)

Total Revenue (Expenses) $1,257,595 $4,916,353 $6,640,496

Debt Service for 2024 = $5,018,132

Riverbend Water Resources District

Regional Water System Facilities Fund - Proposed Budget 

FY 2024

72



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 23, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. D. 

RWRD RESO 20230823-02 

Health Benefits 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

73



 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20230823-02 

 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/CEO TO EXECUTE INTERLOCAL  

AGREEMENT(S) FOR EMPLOYEES HEALTH BENEFITS  

 

            WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 

district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 

Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District currently has an interlocal agreement 

with TX (TML) Health Benefits Pool for a health benefits plan including health reimbursement 

and retirement reimbursement for district employees. However, due to an unexpected increase in 

premiums, said agreement with TX (TML) Health Benefits Pool will be terminated; and 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District has a continued need for medical, 

dental, vision, life, and health reimbursement benefit services to support the operation and 

management of its wet utilities; and 

 

WHEREAS, Blue Cross Blue Shield (BCBS) of Texas provides said needed medical 

benefits; and  

 

WHEREAS, Principal Financial provides said needed dental, vision, and life benefits; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, Ameriflex provides said needed health reimbursement and flex spending 

account benefit services; and 

 

WHEREAS, Bockmon, Knight & Traylor Insurance Agency shall serve as the broker for 

all lines of needed coverage; and 

 

WHEREAS, the above mentioned entities are fully qualified and certified to provide 

these services.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Executive Director/CEO shall be 

and is hereby authorized to enter into interlocal agreement(s) with Blue Cross Blue Shield of 

Texas, Principal Financial, and Ameriflex, to provide medical, dental, vision, life, health 

reimbursement and flex savings account services for Riverbend Water Resources District. 

 
PASSED and APPROVED this 23rd day of August 2023 

 

 

 

74



 
 

____________________________________ 

Van Alexander, President 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Sonja Hubbard, Secretary 

 

 

75



Employer Benefits Presentation
Plan Year October 1, 2023 – 2024

Michelle Traylor

76



Bockmon, Knight & Traylor Insurance Agency
450 E. Loop 281, Ste. C-1

Longview, TX 75605
903-309-1166

2

Dedicated 
Team Members Role Email Phone

Michelle Traylor Agent
Life & Health

MichelleTraylor@
BockmonInsurance.com

903-309-1166  
903-452-6770 cell

Danielle Reid Dedicated
Account Manager

DanielleReid@
BockmonInsurance.com

903-309-1166

77



3presented by Michelle Traylor     |     Bockmon, Knight & Traylor Insurance Agency     |     903-309-1166

Current Benefit Notes

 Benefit Waiting Period    1st of the month following date of hire

 Employer Benefit Contributions  100% of Employee Only

 HRA Employer contributions   $500 per Employee
          +$500 for Family enrollment
          +$500 for spouse enrollment

 Flex Spending Account    Up to $1200/year

 Supplemental Coverage    AFLAC

 Retirement -- 457(b) and 401(a)  Nationwide    

78



5presented by Michelle Traylor     |     Bockmon, Knight & Traylor Insurance Agency     |     903-309-1166

Blue Cross Blue Shield PPO Options                                                     Plan Year October 1, 2023 - 2024

TX Health Benefits Pool TX Health Benefits Pool Blue Cross Blue Cross

Copay - 1K-3K ER RENEWAL P611 HMO 23 P621 PPO 23
Blue Choice PPO Blue Choice PPO Blue Advantage HMO Blue Choice PPO

$1,000 / $2,000 $1,000 / $2,000 $1,250 / Not Covered $1,250 / $2,500
$3,000 $3,000 $1,250 / Not Covered $1,250 / Unlimited

$2,000 / $4,000 $2,000 / $4,000 $3,750 / Not Covered $3,750 / $7,500
Unlimited Unlimited $3,750 / No Coverage $3,750 / Unlimited
80% / 50% 80% / 50% 100% / Not Covered 100% / 80%

$30 / $60
Primary Care / Specialist

$30 / $60
Primary Care / Specialist

$25 / $45
Must name Primary Care Doctor
Must have referral to specialist

$25 / $45

100% 100% FREE FREE
100% 100% $25 $25

Deductible + Coinsurance Deductible + Coinsurance Deductible
Imaging = $250 per test

Deductible
Imaging = $250 per test

$500 copay +
Deductible + Coinsurance

$500 copay +
Deductible + Coinsurance

$400 Copay +
Deductible 

$400 Copay +
Deductible 

$75 copay
Exam & Consultation

$75 copay
Exam & Consultation

$25 Copay $25 copay

Deductible + Coinsurance Deductible + Coinsurance $100 Copay + Deductible $100 Copay + Deductible

Deductible + Coinsurance Deductible + Coinsurance $150 Copay + Deductible $150 Copay + Deductible

$10 $10 $0 / $10 $0 / $10
$40 $40 $10 / $20 $10 / $20
$70 $70 $35 / $55 $35 / $55

$100 $100 $75 / $95 $75 / $95
$150 $150 $150 / $150 $150 / $150
N/A N/A $250 / $250 $250 / $250

None None None None

Enrollment Options #
Enrolled

TX Health Benefits Pool
CURRENT RENEWAL P611 HMO 23 P621 PPO 23

Employee 15 $757.94 $985.32 $745.92 $1,078.65

Employee + Spouse 0 $1,538.62 $2,000.20 $1,491.84 $2,157.30

Employee + Child (ren) 1 $1,327.08 $1,725.20 $1,491.84 $2,157.30

Employee + Family 0 $2,375.38 $3,088.00 $2,237.76 $3,235.95

Emergency Room Visit

Urgent Care Visit

Hospital Outpatient

Hospital Inpatient

Rx Deductible

Rx Copays

  Preferred / Non-Preferred Pharmacy

Lab & X-ray  

Carrier

Plan
Network

Deductible Single In/Out
TOTAL OOP Max Single In/Out
Deductible Family In/Out
TOTAL OOP Max Family In/Out
Co-insurance In/Out

Doctor Visits / Specialist Visits
Copays

Preventive Services
Virtual Visit

79



7presented by Michelle Traylor     |     Bockmon, Knight & Traylor Insurance Agency     |     903-309-1166

Dental – Options                                                                                      Plan Year October 1, 2023 - 2024

In Network Out of Network In Network Out of Network In Network Out of Network

$2,000 $2,000 $5,000 $5,000 $2,000 $2,000

$50 $50 $50 $50 $50 $50

Dental Rates EE Count
TML

Current
TML

Renewal
Employee Only  12 $37.64 $40.66

Employee + Spouse 0 $77.26

Employee + Chi ld(ren) 1 $81.22 $81.22

Employee + Fami ly 3 $96.68 $104.42

$822.94 $882.40

$602.24 $650.56

$220.70 $231.84

** Sealants **Periodontal maintenance ** Fillings ** Simple Extractions ** Scaling & Planing ** Root canal therapy for anterior & molar teeth **

 When you receive care from an out-of-network provider, the benefits will be paid
based on the 90th percentile of the usual & customary charges

Employer Contribution = 100% EE

DENTAL BENEFITS Principal

Network Principa l  Plan Denta l  Network
www.principal.com/dentist

Annual  Benefi t Maximum per member

Calendar Year Deductible per member
Fami ly Deductible = 3 times the per member 

Preventive Services  (twice per year) Plan pays 100%
No deductible

Principal Dental

$34.99

$71.82

Plan pays 50%
after deductible

** Complex Oral surgical procedures ** Anesthesia ** Crowns ** Bridges ** Dentures **

Orthodontia  - Chi ld $3,000

Out of Network Preva i l ing Charge 90th Percentile

$75.50

$107.41

Tota l  Monthly Cost $817.61

  ** Exams ** Cleanings ** X-rays

Bas ic Services
Plan pays 80%

after deductible

Major Services

UHC 5P478

United Heal thcare
www.uhc.com

Plan pays 100%
No deductible

TX Health Benefits 

BlueCare Denta l

Plan pays 100%
No deductible

Plan pays 80%
after deductible

Plan pays 80%
after deductible

Plan pays 50%
after deductible

Plan pays 50%
after deductible

$3,000Not Covered

90th Percentile 90th Percentile

United Healthcare 
Dental

COST

$29.98

$59.96

$78.82

$115.32

$784.54

$479.68

$304.86

Tota l  EmployER Cost $559.84

Tota l  EmployEE Cost $257.77

81



8presented by Michelle Traylor     |     Bockmon, Knight & Traylor Insurance Agency     |     903-309-1166

Vision – Options                                                                                       Plan Year October 1, 2023 - 2024

In Network Out of Network In Network Out of Network In Network Out of Network

$0 Copay Up to $45 allowance $15 Copay Up to $40 allowance $0 Copay Up to $65 allowance

$60 Copay Up to $200 allowance $40 Copay $40 Copay $40 Copay Up to $200 allowance

$200 allowance
20% off over 

$200
Up to $70 allowance

$175 allowance
30% off over $175 Up to $45 allowance

$175 allowance
20% off over $175 Up to $125 allowance

Up to $30 allowance Up to $40 allowance Up to $30 allowance
Up to $50 allowance Up to $60 allowance Up to $50 allowance
Up to $65 allowance Up to $80 allowance Up to $65 allowance

Up to $100 allowance Up to $80 allowance Up to $100 allowance

$210 allowance Up to $105 allowance $175 allowance Up to $150 allowance $175 allowance Up to $125 allowance

$10 copay Up to $210 allowance 100% Up to $210 allowance $0 copay Up to $210 allowance

Vision Rates EE Count
TML

Current
TML

Renewal

Employee Only  13 $8.93 $8.93

Employee + Spouse 1 $16.97 $16.97
Employee + Chi ld(ren) 0 $17.86 $17.86
Employee + Fami ly 2 $22.78 $22.78

$178.62 $178.62

$142.88 $142.88
$35.74 $35.74

TX Health Benefits Pool

EyeMed

$10 Copay

COST

United Healthcare

www.myuhcvision.com

$30 Copay

United Healthcare

$7.23

$13.72
$16.09
$22.64

$152.99

VISION BENEFITS Principal

Contact Lenses  Elective
(every 12 months)  

Employer Contribution = EE 100% 

Tota l  Monthly Cost

Lenses  (one pa i r every 12 months)

VSP Choice Network
www.vsp.com

Network

Contact Lenses  Necessary
(every 12 months)  

$5.85

$11.11
$11.70

Principal

Tota l  EmployER Cost

$23.38

$14.91

$116.98

Tota l  EmployEE Cost

$115.68
$37.31

Elective Contact Lens  Fi tting & 
Exam

Exam (every 12 months)

$10 Copay
Lined Bi foca l

Lenticular

Frames  (every 24 months)

Single vis ion

Lined Tri foca l

$93.60

82



9presented by Michelle Traylor     |     Bockmon, Knight & Traylor Insurance Agency     |     903-309-1166

Employer Paid Life & AD&D –Principal                                               Plan Year October 1, 2023 - 2024

TML
Current & 
Renewal

Principal

$0.234 per $1,000 $0.291 per $1,000

unknown $1,022,850.00 

$239.35 $297.65 

$2,872.20 $3,571.80 

Estimated Cost per Employee

Estimated Montly Premium

Estimated Total Annual Premium

EMPLOYER PAID LIFE
1X Employee Salary

(Max $100,000)

Volume

83



10presented by Michelle Traylor     |     Bockmon, Knight & Traylor Insurance Agency     |     903-309-1166

Voluntary Life  – Principal                                                                      Plan Year October 1, 2023 - 2024

84



11presented by Michelle Traylor     |     Bockmon, Knight & Traylor Insurance Agency     |     903-309-1166

Voluntary Life  – Principal                                                                      Plan Year October 1, 2023 - 2024

85



12presented by Michelle Traylor     |     Bockmon, Knight & Traylor Insurance Agency     |     903-309-1166

HRA – FSA Plan Cost - Ameriflex                                                           Plan Year October 1, 2023 - 2024

HRA Annual Cost
$200 Set Up Fee + $3.83 PEPM (at 16 eligible) = $935.36

FSA Annual Cost
$200 Set up Fee + $3.83 (at 6 participants) = $475.76

$175 Renewal Fee

86



13

Notes & Reminders

Notes
 HMO plans require everyone enrolled to name a Primary Care Provider (PCP) at 
enrollment and have a referral before seeing other providers.

 I have lists of HMO network hospitals, PCP’s, and specialists that I can send in an 
email.

 In order to get the rates from Principal, you must go with base life, dental, and 
vision.
  
Questions?
 Please let me know if you have any questions or want to see more options.
 I based these options on your current individual plan coverage and rates.

87



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 23, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. E. 

RWRD RESO 20230823-03 

Tidewater Contract 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

88



 
 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20230823-03 

 

RATIFYING A CONTRACT WITH TIDEWATER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 FOR ENGINEERING CONSULTING SERVICES 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 

district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 

Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

WHEREAS, on June 28, 2019, Riverbend entered into an agreement with LJA 

Engineering, Inc. for assistance with preparing an application for water rights to be submitted to 

the Texas Commission for Environmental Quality (TCEQ); and 

 

WHEREAS, the consultant assigned to this project has since begun consulting with a 

different company. As a result, Riverbend wishes to continue working with that consultant that 

has the knowledge and experience necessary to see this application completed.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of Riverbend 

Water Resources District hereby ratifies a contract with Tidewater Professional Services for 

engineering consulting services executed on August 14, 2023. The contract will be under terms 

substantially the same as attached hereto and further reviewed by general counsel. 

 

 PASSED and APPROVED this 23rd day of August 2023 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Van Alexander, President 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Sonja Hubbard, Secretary 

 

 

Attached: Tidewater Professional Services Contract 

 

89



RWRD-Tidewater Engineering Services Contract Page 1  

ENGINEER CONSULTING SERVICES CONTRACT 
FOR RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT 

 
 

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into by and between RIVERBEND WATER 
RESOURCES DISTRICT, with its principal office at 228 Texas Avenue, Suite A, New Boston, 
Texas 75570 (hereinafter called "RWRD") and Tidewater Professional Services, LLC with its 
office at 103 Orchard Ave., Port Neches, Texas 77651 (hereinafter called "CONSULTANT"). 

WHEREAS, RWRD is seeking to enter into an agreement for professional engineering 
general services agreement (hereafter called “PSA” or “CONTRACT”) for services and/or 
projects defined in accordance with Article III of this Agreement. 

 
WHEREAS, CONSULTANT represents that CONSULTANT is qualified and capable 

of performing the services defined according to Article III of this Contract, is experienced in 
the particular requirements needed to in association with the proposed services, is 
acceptable to RWRD, and is willing to enter into a CONTRACT with RWRD to perform such 
services; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants 

contained herein, RWRD and CONSULTANT agree as follows: 

 
ARTICLE I 

RETAINER 

RWRD agrees to retain CONSULTANT and CONSULTANT agrees to perform 
services specified according to Article III of this Contract. RWRD agrees to pay and 
CONSULTANT agrees to accept fees as specified hereinafter as full and final compensation 
for the services authorized and accomplished. 

It is understood and agreed that no professional services of any nature shall be 
undertaken under this CONTRACT by CONSULTANT until CONSULTANT is instructed in 
writing by RWRD to commence with the work. 

 

ARTICLE II 

PROFESSIONAL QUALITY 

CONSULTANT shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, timely 
completion, and coordination of all designs, drawings, documents, estimates, specifications, 
reports, studies and other material (all items collectively hereinafter called "PROJECT 
DOCUMENTS") and services furnished by CONSULTANT under this CONTRACT. Approval 
by RWRD of PROJECT DOCUMENTS, services, and incidental services shall not in any way 
relieve CONSULTANT of responsibility for the technical accuracy of the services performed. 
RWRD's review, approval or acceptance of, or payment for any of the services described 
herein shall not be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this CONTRACT or of 
any cause of action arising out of the performance of this CONTRACT. 
 

90



RWRD-Tidewater Engineering Services Contract Page 2  

ARTICLE III 

ENGINEER CONSULTING SERVICES 

CONSULTANT agrees to perform certain SERVICES as hereinafter stated, in 
accordance with the stipulations within this CONTRACT.  

CONSULTANT agrees to perform SERVICES necessary for completion of each 
PROJECT to be defined by Scope, Budget, and Schedule by authorized and executed Work 
Authorizations which shall be subject to the terms of this General Services Contract.  Each 
Work Authorization shall be comprised of the following: 

1) A duly authorized and executed WORK AUTHORIZATION will be developed for each 
Project to be completed under the terms of this CONTRACT and become a part 
hereof as subsequent ATTACHMENTS. 

2) Each WORK AUTHORIZATION will define the Scope of Services for each desired 
Project and include specific services, deliverables, compensation, and other terms 
for the specific authorized activities. 

• Consultant will provide all services and information as specifically outlined in 
each Scope of Work attached hereto as in the Work Authorization 
Attachment for each Project.   

• Consultant will provide all work product PROJECT DOCUMENTS in 
accordance with the schedule, as set forth in the applicable Attachment. 

• Consultant shall be compensated for provided services specified in the Work 
Authorization in accordance with the terms of this Contract and the Work 
Authorization, and as set forth in the applicable Attachment.  

 
 

ARTICLE IV 

SPECIAL ENGINEER CONSULTING SERVICES 

Any various SPECIAL SERVICES incidental to an authorized PROJECT, but not 
within the scope of the SERVICES covered by ARTICLE III preceding, or the applicable Work 
Authorization, shall be arranged for separately in an additional contract between RWRD and 
CONSULTANT or by an amendment to this contract which requires mutual agreement of 
the Parties in writing. 

 

ARTICLE V 

SERVICES BY RWRD 

RWRD and its representatives will render services inclusive of the following: 

1) Assist CONSULTANT by placing at CONSULTANT’S disposal all available written 
information and technical data in RWRD’s possession and control pertinent to the 
PROJECT, and CONSULTANT shall be able to reasonably rely without independent

91



RWRD-Tidewater Engineering Services Contract Page 3  

verification upon the information and data provided by RWRD, except to the extent 
that RWRD has expressly requested CONSULTANT to verify as part of the 
SERVICES; 

2) Provide in writing any specific RWRD requirements or criteria for the PROJECT, 
including design objectives and constraints, space, capacity and performance 
requirements, flexibility and expandability, and any budgetary limitations; 

3) Examine documents submitted by CONSULTANT and render a decision pertaining 
thereto promptly, to avoid unreasonable delay in the progress of CONSULTANT'S 
services; 

4) Furnish information required as expeditiously as possible and in a reasonable time 
within the context of the PROJECT for the orderly progress of the work, including any 
document or inquiry required to be commented, reviewed, or approved by RWRD; 

5) The Executive Director shall serve or appoint, in writing, a representative that 
CONSULTANT shall be entitled to rely upon regarding decisions made by RWRD. All 
subsequent communication to RWRD shall be deemed made when conveyed in 
writing to the representative at the location specified in ARTICLE XIX, NOTICES; and 

6) The services, information, and reports required by this ARTICLE, inclusive, shall be 
furnished at RWRD's expense, and RWRD will use its best efforts to apprise 
CONSULTANT of any inaccuracies or inconsistencies in the information provided. 

 

ARTICLE VI 

COMPENSATION 

A. ENGINEER CONSULTING SERVICES 

For and in consideration of the SERVICES (ARTICLE III) to be rendered by 
CONSULTANT, RWRD shall pay and CONSULTANT shall receive compensation as 
hereinafter set forth. All remittance by RWRD for such compensation shall either be mailed 
or delivered to CONSULTANT'S office as identified in ARTICLE XIX, NOTICES. 

Compensation for SERVICES shall be paid by RWRD to CONSULTANT for all 
services required for work stated under ARTICLE III, in accordance with the Attachment for 
the applicable Work Authorization, plus any additional compensation for services under 
ARTICLE IV. 

 
B. SPECIAL SERVICES 

For and in consideration of the SPECIAL SERVICES set forth in ARTICLE IV, herein, 
RWRD shall pay CONSULTANT according to the terms and conditions set forth in a 
subsequent AGREEMENT, an amendment to this AGREEMENT, or a duly authorized and 
executed Work Authorization, which shall be further set forth in writing. 

 
C. METHOD OF BILLING 

For services performed by CONSULTANT for RWRD under the terms of this 
CONTRACT, CONSULTANT shall submit monthly statements reflecting CONSULTANT'S 

92



RWRD-Tidewater Engineering Services Contract Page 4  

requested compensation for that portion of the SERVICES completed by CONSULTANT 
and shown by invoice, less an 8% retainage until completion of the PROJECT, 
notwithstanding any subsequent SPECIAL SERVICES. Each invoice must also include a 
detailed account of the progress made on the PROJECT, including progress by project task 
and subtask correlating with percentage completion during the current monthly billing period 
and with percentage completion total to-date. Upon completion of the PROJECT, 
CONSULTANT shall submit a FINAL INVOICE and request full payment along with any 
previously withheld retainage. 

The billing for any SPECIAL SERVICES shall be outlined if and when the Parties 
choose to enter into an agreement or amendment for such additional CONSULTING 
SERVICES. 

 
D. TIME OF PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION 

CONSULTANT shall submit a request for partial payments for services on a monthly 
basis, as evidenced by monthly statements submitted by CONSULTANT to RWRD; the 
monthly statements will include a progress report summarizing the work performed during 
the payment period; and final payment for services authorized shall be due upon completion 
of these services. This entire provision relating to time of payment for SERVICES is subject 
to receipt of progress reports and withholding of retainage as set forth under ARTICLE VI.,C. 

Should RWRD fail to make payment to CONSULTANT for the sum named in any 
partial or final statement, and when payment is past due for more than forty-five (45) days, 
then RWRD shall pay to CONSULTANT, in addition to the sum shown as due by such 
statement, interest thereon at the highest rate as recognized and allowed by Texas Law. 

However, in the event that the sum shown as due to CONSULTANT by such 
statement shall be disputed, questioned, or objected to by RWRD, then said interest rate as 
allowed by Texas Law from the date due shall only apply to that portion or amount of payment 
which is finally and mutually agreed upon by RWRD and CONSULTANT to be rightfully due 
and owing to CONSULTANT. 

 

ARTICLE VII 

CONFIDENTIALITY 

 
A. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

CONSULTANT shall treat as confidential information all data delivered to it by RWRD, 
all draft or working documents, or all PROJECT DOCUMENTS developed in the 
performance of the SERVICES that are specified in writing by RWRD to be confidential 
(“CONFIDENTIAL   INFORMATION”).   CONFIDENTIAL   INFORMATION   shall   not   be 
disclosed to third Parties by CONSULTANT without the consent of RWRD, except in the 
proper performance of the SERVICES, for a period of 5 years following completion or 
termination of this AGREEMENT. 

93



RWRD-Tidewater Engineering Services Contract Page 5  

B. EXCLUSIONS 

Notwithstanding the above, these restrictions shall not apply to CONFIDENTIAL 
INFORMATION which (i) is already known to CONSULTANT; (ii) becomes publicly known 
through no wrongful act or omission of CONSULTANT; (iii) is communicated to a third party 
with the express written consent of RWRD and not subject to restrictions on further use or 
disclosure to said named third party; (iv) is independently developed by CONSULTANT and 
not within the scope of services for the PROJECT; or (v) to the extent such CONFIDENTIAL 
INFORMATION as to all other persons or entities pursuant to the terms of this AGREEMENT 
is required to be disclosed by law or court order, and provided further that CONSULTANT 
shall promptly provide RWRD with written notice of such requirement. 

 
C. RETURN OF CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

Upon termination of this AGREEMENT or upon RWRD’s written request, 
CONSULTANT shall return the CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION to RWRD or destroy the 
CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION in CONSULTANT’S possession or control. 
Notwithstanding the above, CONSULTANT shall not be required to destroy CONFIDENTIAL 
INFORMATION held electronically in archive or back-up systems in accordance with general 
systems archiving or back-up policies or required for preservation by law, regulation, audit, 
data retention or corporate archival purposes or per regulatory, judicial, or governmental 
order. All such retained CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION shall be kept confidential by 
CONSULTANT subject to and in accordance with the terms of this AGREEMENT. 

 
ARTICLE VIII 

AUDIT OF RECORDS 

All records of CONSULTANT of a financial or timekeeping basis which have been 
used to determine the fees earned by CONSULTANT and billed to RWRD shall be open to 
inspection and subject to audit and/or reproduction by RWRD's agent or its authorized 
representative to the extent necessary to adequately permit evaluation and verification of 
cost of the services at the conclusion of the scope of all services to be performed under this 
CONTRACT. In its audits, RWRD may require inspection and copying from time to time and 
at reasonable times and places of any and all information, materials and data of every kind 
and character that may in RWRD's judgment have any bearing on or pertain to the payments 
subject to this audit. RWRD shall be afforded access to all of CONSULTANT'S records 
pursuant to the provisions of this ARTICLE at the conclusion of the term of the CONTRACT 
and for a period of one (1) year after final payment. 

 

ARTICLE IX 

ENGINEER CONSULTANT’S LIABILITY 

The liability of CONSULTANT for any cause or combination of causes absent 
intentional torts or gross negligence shall be, in total amount, limited to the total fees paid to 
CONSULTANT under this CONTRACT. 

94



RWRD-Tidewater Engineering Services Contract Page 6  

 

ARTICLE X 

ASSIGNMENT 

Neither this CONTRACT, nor any right, privilege or cause of action arising hereunder 
may be assigned in whole or in part for any purpose and whether in settlement of litigation 
or not, and any purported assignment shall be null, void and unenforceable without the 
written consent of the RWRD. RWRD and CONSULTANT each binds itself and its 
successors and assigns to the other party with respect to all covenants of this CONTRACT. 

 

ARTICLE XI 

TERMINATION 

In connection with all the SERVICES outlined or contemplated above, it is agreed that 
RWRD or CONSULTANT may cancel or terminate this CONTRACT upon thirty (30) days 
written notice to the other, with the provision and understanding that immediately upon receipt 
of notice of such cancellation from either Party to the other, all work and labor being 
performed under this CONTRACT shall immediately cease, pending final cancellation at the 
end of such thirty (30) day period, and further provided that CONSULTANT shall be 
compensated in accordance with the terms of this CONTRACT for all work accomplished 
prior to the receipt of notice of such termination. Upon payment of such compensation, all 
completed or partially completed PROJECT DOCUMENTS prepared under this 
CONTRACT shall then be delivered to RWRD. Any reuse by RWRD, without specific 
written verification or adaptation by CONSULTANT, shall be at RWRD's sole risk and 
without liability to CONSULTANT.  Any modification of plans will be evidenced on the plans 
and be signed and sealed by a licensed professional prior to re-use of modified plans.  All 
rights, duties, liabilities, and obligations accrued prior to such termination shall survive 
termination. 

 

ARTICLE XII 

PROJECT DOCUMENTS 

A. PROJECT DOCUMENTS AS PROPERTY OF RWRD 

Upon payment in full of any undisputed amounts owed CONSULTANT, all PROJECT 
DOCUMENTS set forth in the applicable Work Authorization Attachment are and shall 
become the property of RWRD, which it may use without restraint. CONSULTANT is not 
responsible and is hereby released from responsibility for RWRD's use of the documents for 
any purpose other than for the PROJECT. 

 

B. EXCLUSIONS 

Notwithstanding the above, CONSULTANT’s proprietary information, including without 
limitation, work papers, drawings, specifications, processes, procedures, software, 
methodologies, know-how, software, other instruments or services belonging to or licensed 
to CONSULTANT and used to develop the PROJECT DOCUMENTS, shall remain the sole 

95



RWRD-Tidewater Engineering Services Contract Page 7  

property of CONSULTANT. To the extent that the PROJECT DOCUMENTS contain or 
require the use of such CONSULTANT data, CONSULTANT herby grants RWRD, upon 
proper payment for the Services, a non-exclusive, non-transferable, non-sublicensable, and 
royalty-free license to use such information solely for the purpose for which the PROJECT 
DOCUMENTS were developed. Nothing in this Article shall be construed to prohibit 
CONSULTANT from using skills, knowledge, or experience gained by CONSULTANT in the 
performance of the SERVICES for other purposes, provided that CONSULTANT does not 
use RWRD’s CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 

 

ARTICLE XIII 

PRIVATE LAND ENTRY 

CONSULTANT shall not enter any property owned by others on RWRD's behalf to 
perform services under this CONTRACT until CONSULTANT has secured the landowner's 
permission to so enter and perform such activities. 

 

ARTICLE  XIV 

LAWS AND ORDINANCES 

CONSULTANT shall at all times observe and comply with all federal, state, and local 
laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and orders of any public governmental entity, which in 
any manner affect this CONTRACT or the PROJECT. CONSULTANT agrees, moreover, 
not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
religion, color, sex, age, disability, or national origin. CONSULTANT agrees to comply with 
the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990. CONSULTANT agrees that the indemnification provisions of ARTICLE XVIII 
INDEMNIFICATION below encompass any failure by CONSULTANT to comply with this 
article. 

 

ARTICLE XV 

FORCE MAJEURE 

Neither Party shall be responsible for a delay in its respective performance under this 
AGREEMENT, other than a delay in payment for SERVICES already performed, if such 
delay is caused by extraordinary weather conditions or other natural occurrences, war, 
terrorist attacks, sabotage, computer viruses, riots, strikes, lockouts, or other industrial 
disturbances, acts of governmental agencies or authorities, discovery of hazardous 
materials or differing and unforeseeable site conditions, or other events beyond the 
reasonable control of the claiming Party. Both Parties shall be entitled to an equitable 
adjustment to the Project Schedule and compensation/amounts owed in the forgoing 
circumstances. 

96



RWRD-Tidewater Engineering Services Contract Page 8  

ARTICLE XVI 

INSURANCE 

CONSULTANT will maintain the following insurance coverages and 
amounts: 

 
 

1) Workers Compensation Insurance, as required by  law; 
 
 

2) Commercial General Liability Insurance with coverage of $1,000,000 per 
 

Occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate; 
 

3) Automobile Liability Insurance with coverage of $1,000,000 combined single limit; 
 

and 
 

4) Professional Liability Insurance with coverage of $2,000,000 per claim/aggregate. 
 

5) In the event Consultant employs one or more employees, other than Consultant,  
 

then Consultant shall secure Employer’s Liability Insurance with coverage of  
 

$1,000,000 for each accident or occurrence. 
 
 
 

ARTICLE XVII 

RISK ALLOCATION AND RESTRICTION OF REMEDIES 

The Parties have evaluated the respective risks and remedies under this 
AGREEMENT and agree to allocate the risks and restrict the remedies to reflect that 
evaluation. Notwithstanding any other provision to the contrary in this AGREEMENT and 
to the fullest extent permitted by law, RWRD agrees to restrict its remedies under this 
AGREEMENT against CONSULTANT, its parents, affiliates and subsidiaries, and their 
respective directors, officers, shareholders and employees, so that the total aggregate 
liability of CONSULTANT shall not exceed the actual paid compensation for the service 
absent intentional torts or grossly negligent conduct. This restriction of Remedies shall 
apply to all suits, claims, actions, losses, costs (including attorney fees) and damages of 
any nature arising from or related to this AGREEMENT without regard to the legal theory 
under which such liability is imposed. 

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, in no event shall 
either party be liable to the other for consequential, incidental, punitive, special, or exemplary 
damages, including lost revenues, profits, delays, or other economic loss arising from any 
cause including breach of warranty, breach of contract, tort, strict liability or any other cause 
whatsoever.  To the extent permitted by law, any statutory remedies that are inconsistent 
with this provision of the AGREEMENT are waived. 

97



RWRD-Tidewater Engineering Services Contract Page 9  

ARTICLE XVIII 

INDEMNIFICATION 

CONSULTANT shall indemnify and hold the RWRD harmless from all liability for 
damage to the extent that the damage is caused by or results from an act of 
negligence, intentional tort, intellectual property infringement, or failure to pay a 
subcontractor or supplier committed by CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s agent, or 
another entity over which CONSULTANT exercises control.  CONSULTANT shall 
reimburse RWRD’s reasonable attorney's fees in proportion to CONSULTANT’s 
liability.   

 

ARTICLE XIX 

NOTICES 

All notices, requests, claims, demands, and other official communications under this 
CONTRACT shall be in writing and shall be delivered to RWRD (i) by delivery in person, (ii) 
by a nationally recognized commercial courier service; or (iii) by United States Postal Service, 
registered mail, postage prepaid and return receipt requested. Notice shall be effective upon 
actual delivery to the RWRD at the following address, unless and until CONSULTANT is 
otherwise notified: 

Riverbend Water Resources District 
228 Texas Avenue, Suite A 
New Boston, Texas 75570 

Attention: Kyle Dooley, P.E.  
Executive Director/CEO 
Email: kyledooley@rwrd.org   

 
All notices, requests, claims, demands, and other official communications under this 

CONTRACT shall be in writing and shall be delivered to CONSULTANT (i) by delivery in 
person, (ii) by a nationally recognized commercial courier service; or (iii) by United States 
Postal Service, registered mail, postage prepaid and return receipt requested. Notice shall be 
effective upon actual delivery to the CONSULTANT at the following address, unless and until 
RWRD is otherwise notified: 

Tidewater Professional Services, LLC 
103 Orchard Ave. 
Port Neches, TX 77651 

Attention:  Dawn Pilcher, P.E., R.P.L.S. 
President 
Email:  dpilcher@tidewater.llc    
 

 

 

98



RWRD-Tidewater Engineering Services Contract Page 10  

ARTICLE XX 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

The services performed hereunder by CONSULTANT shall be subject to RWRD's 
inspection and approval, but the detailed manner and method of doing said services shall 
be under the control of CONSULTANT. In the performance of services hereunder, 
CONSULTANT shall be deemed an independent contractor, and any of its employees, 
representatives, subcontractors or consultants performing services required hereunder shall 
be deemed solely employees of CONSULTANT or its representatives, subcontractors or 
consultants, and not employees of RWRD. 

Nothing contained in this contract shall be construed to create a partnership, joint 
venture, or create a relationship of employee/employer or principle/agent between RWRD 
and CONSULTANT. 

 

ARTICLE XXI  

PARTIES IN INTEREST 

Nothing in this AGREEMENT, expressed or implied, is intended to confer on any 
person or entity other than the Parties any right or remedy under or by reason of this 
AGREEMENT. The provisions of this AGREEMENT shall bind and inure solely to the benefit 
of the Parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 

 

ARTICLE XXII 

WAIVER 

Either Party may in writing waive any provisions of this AGREEMENT to the extent 
such provision is for the benefit of the waiving Party. No waiver by any Party of a breach of 
any provision of this AGREEMENT shall be construed to be a waiver of any subsequent or 
different breach. 

 

ARTICLE XXIII 

SUBCONTRACTORS 

In fulfilling its duties pursuant to this CONTRACT, it is anticipated that CONSULTANT 
may subcontract to individuals, corporations, organizations, governments or governmental 
subdivisions or agencies, partnerships, associations, or other legal entities. RWRD must 
approve all subcontractors. 

RWRD encourages equal opportunity to historically underutilized business 
enterprises and recognizes that CONSULTANT is classified as a female-owned, small 
business enterprise. 

99



RWRD-Tidewater Engineering Services Contract Page 11  

 

ARTICLE XXIV 

PRIOR CONTRACTS SUPERSEDED 

This CONTRACT constitutes the sole and only CONTRACT of the Parties hereto and 
supersedes any prior understanding or oral or written agreements between the Parties 
regarding the subject matter of this CONTRACT, and any and all changes, modifications or 
alterations of this CONTRACT must be in writing and approved by both RWRD and 
CONSULTANT. 

CONSULTANT releases and waives any and all causes of action of whatever nature, or 
any other legal theory arising out of any prior understanding or oral or written agreements 
between the Parties, or any subsequent oral understanding or agreements between the 
Parties, regarding the subject matter of this CONTRACT, from any and all liability or damages 
of any kind known or unknown, whether in contract or tort. 

 

ARTICLE XXV 

LEGAL CONSTRUCTION 

In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this CONTRACT shall be for 
any reason held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, 
or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof and this CONTRACT shall be 
construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained 
herein. The validity of this CONTRACT and of any of its terms or provisions, as well as the 
rights and duties hereunder, shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas. 

Nothing in this CONTRACT is intended to waive any governmental immunity available to 
RWRD under Texas law or waive any defenses of CONSULTANT or RWRD under Texas law. 
This CONTRACT shall not be construed for the benefit of any third party, nor does it create or 
grant any right or cause of action in favor of any third party against RWRD or CONSULTANT. 

Venue for any claims or causes of action relative to the interpretation of this 
CONTRACT, the enforcement of this CONTRACT, or stemming either directly or indirectly 
from the performance of this CONTRACT shall be in the district courts of Bowie County, Texas. 

 

ARTICLE XXVI 

REPRESENTATIONS 

CONSULTANT represents that no officer, employee, or agent of RWRD has sought or 
received compensation in any way with respect to the consideration or execution of this 
CONTRACT, and in no event will CONSULTANT pay a fee to, or in any other manner 
compensate RWRD officers, employees, or agents in connection with the approval or 
performance of this CONTRACT. CONSULTANT expressly warrants and represents that no 
promise or agreement which is not herein expressed has been made to CONSULTANT in 
executing this CONTRACT and CONSULTANT is not relying upon any such statement or 
representation of RWRD, its officers, agents, or employees in entering into this CONTRACT. 

 

100



RWRD-Tidewater Engineering Services Contract Page 12  

ARTICLE XXVII 

STATUTORY TERMS APPLICABLE TO STATE POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS 
 
As required by Chapter 2270, Government Code, CONSULTANT hereby verifies that 

it does not boycott Israel and will not boycott Israel through the term of this Agreement.  For 
purposes of this verification, “boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating 
business activities with, or otherwise taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict 
economic harm on, or limit commercial relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or 
entity doing business in Israel or in an Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an 
action made for ordinary business purposes. 

 

ARTICLE XXVIII 

SIGNATURES 

Each person executing this AGREEMENT warrants that he/she has the necessary 
authority to do so on behalf of the respective Party. This AGREEMENT may be executed in 
one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which 
together shall constitute a single AGREEMENT. 

 

ARTICLE XXIX 

TERM OF CONTRACT AND TIME OF PERFORMANCE 

 

This CONTRACT shall be effective the            day of   , 2023, and 
remain valid for a period of 2 years, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by both Parties. 

CONSULTANT shall satisfactorily complete ENGINEER CONSULTING SERVICES 
as outlined in the Scope of Work in any associated Work Authorization in accordance with 
schedule and terms thereof. 

This CONTRACT shall continue in full force and effect until all SERVICES are deemed 
completed by RWRD. RWRD may, on its own determination, extend the term of this 
CONTRACT by written agreement with CONSULTANT. All payments and liabilities accrued 
prior to termination shall survive the termination. 

 

 
  

101



RWRD-Tidewater Engineering Services Contract Page 13  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties acting under authority of their respective 
governing bodies have caused this CONTRACT to be executed in several counterparts, 
each of which is deemed to be an original, as of the day and date first written above. 

 

 
TIDEWATER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, LLC  RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT 

DAWN PILCHER, P.E., R.P.L.S. 
President 

 
KYLE DOOLEY, P.E. 
Executive Director/CEO 

   

 
 

 

 
ATTEST: 

  
ATTEST: 

   

 

102



  

TIDEWATER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, LLC 
Water Resources Consulting 

 
  

 

   

 

  

 
TIDEWATER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, LLC 

103 Orchard Ave, Port Neches, TX 77651 
MOBILE: 409.284.8581       EMAIL: tidewater.pilcher@outlook.com 

 

ATTACHMENT A 
WORK AUTHORIZATION  

 
Client: _RWRD_________ 

Contract ID:  _______________ 
Contract Date:  _______________ 

 
This Work Authorization (the “Authorization”) is made pursuant to the terms and conditions of the 
Professional Engineering General Services Agreement (“PSA”) entered into on the _____ of 
________________ 20___ by and between Tidewater Professional Services, LLC ("Tidewater”) and 
Riverbend Water Resources District ("District” or “RWRD") and as amended by all duly executed 
amendments. 
 

A. Services and Deliverables to be provided by Tidewater. 
 

Services: Tidewater shall provide professional engineering services to the District as follows: 
 

TASK 1 – Evaluate water availability in Lake Wright Patman “Reservoir” based on current 
water use authorizations, operational plan and limitations, actual historical use, and current 
contractual obligations to access potential quantity of excess water that may be available to 
support other beneficial uses for a fixed/limited period of time.  Models will assess current 
and anticipated actual water use and contractual commitments. 
 
TASK 2 – Apply anticipated future demands with incremental increases across time to 
represent the best current understanding of when various projects and demands will come 
online and ramp up from initial demand to peak capacity operation. Models will be evaluated 
on 10-year timesteps to provide a 50-year forecast of needs and availability. 
 
TASK 3 -Assist RWRD with identifying and evaluating opportunities to provide available excess 
water to other users on a term basis. 
 

 
Deliverables: In conjunction with the performance of the foregoing services, Tidewater shall 

provide the following submittals/deliverables to the District: 
 

Modeling – All modelling will be conducted using the TCEQ approved Water Availability 
Model (WAM) for the Sulphur River Basin.  All models will be made available to the RWRD. 
 

103



Page 2 of 3 

Draft Report – Document all assumptions and evaluation considerations, and present 
findings of available water for the next 50 years on 10-year time steps. 
 
Presentation at RWRD Board Meeting – Attend RWRD Board Meeting and present findings 
to the Board. 

 
Final Report – Incorporate comments and address concerns for RWRD into final report. 

 
 

B. Compensation. Client shall pay Tidewater for Services as follows: 
 
Data Collection and Modeling – estimated $27,750, total for 12 unique models and 
availability assessments; digital copies of the models will be made available on request. 
 
Draft Report – estimated $6,000. 
 
Presentation at RWRD Board Meeting – estimated $5,000, includes preparing exhibits and 
in-person attendance at RWRD Board Meeting in New Boston, Texas. 
 
Final Report – estimated $3,000.  Includes up to 10 bound copies and 1 digital copy on a 
thumb drive. 

 

_X_  Hourly, not to exceed:  Estimated Compensation for this Task Order is $ 41,750    . 
 

Fees shall not exceed the above identified value without prior written 
authorization from Client. 

 
 
 

C. Payment. Payment to Tidewater for the services established under this Work Authorization 
shall be made in accordance with the PSA. 
 
 

D. Supplemental Terms and Conditions. 
Any services requested beyond those detailed in this Work Authorization shall be provided 
under separate Work Authorization or separate Contract as appropriate for the desired 
activities.                                                                                                                               

 
 

E. Severability. This Authorization supplements the PSA and does not waive the parties’ 
responsibilities and obligations provided thereunder. Where the terms or conditions of this 
Authorization conflict with those of the PSA, this authorization shall control for the Services 
performed under this Authorization only. This Authorization’s terms shall be deemed to be 
separate and severable, and the invalidity or unenforceability of any of them shall not affect 
or impair the validity or enforceability of the PSA. 
 

 

104



Page 3 of 3 

Each of the undersigned Parties has caused this Authorization to be duly executed: 
 
APPROVED FOR “CLIENT”    APPROVED FOR “TIDEWATER” 
RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES 
DISTRICT  

 TIDEWATER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, 
LLC 

By:   By:  

Printed Name:  Kyle Dooley  Printed Name:    Dawn Pilcher  

Title:   Executive Director   Title:    President 

Date:   Date:  
 
  

 

105



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 23, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. F. 

RWRD RESO 20230823-04 

Oak Grove Water Supply  

Corporation Contract 

 

106



 

 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20230823-04 

 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/CEO TO AMEND THE WATER 

SUPPLY CONTRACT WITH OAK GROVE WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District (“Riverbend”), created in 2009, is a 

conservation and reclamation district created under and essential to accomplish the purpose of 

Section 59, Article XVI, Texas Constitution, as set forth in Title 6, Special District Local Laws 

Code, Subtitle L, Municipal Water Districts, Chapter 9601, and is comprised of member entities 

(collectively referred to as “the Member Entities”); and 

 

WHEREAS, Oak Grove Water Supply Corporation (“Oak Grove”) is located 

approximately 38 miles west of the City of Texarkana, Texas in Bowie County. Oak Grove 

provides water and wastewater services to a population of approximately 921 residents and 303 

connections; and 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend entered into a Water Distribution and Supply Contract with Oak 

Grove on September 2, 2020 which provides for long-term regional water supply and the 

necessary infrastructure improvements for all participating Member Entities; and 

 

WHEREAS, Oak Grove has been awarded a grant for $300,000 in principal forgiveness 

from the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund through the Texas Water Development Board for 

participation in the new regional water system. This grant will aid in the repayment of the debt service 

they are obligated to pay in accordance with the water supply contract executed on September 2, 

2020.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Executive Director/CEO shall be 

and is authorized to execute an amendment to the water supply contract with Oak Grove Water 

Supply Corporation.  

 

PASSED and APPROVED this 23rd day of August 2023 
 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Van Alexander, President 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Sonja Hubbard, Secretary 

 

Attached: Oak Grove WSC Contract Amendment 

107



Page 1 of 2 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO WATER DISTRIBUTION AND SUPPLY CONTRACT 

 

This FIRST AMENDMENT TO WATER DISTRIBUTION AND SUPPLY 

CONTRACT (“First Amendment”) is made and entered into by and between the Riverbend 

Water Resources District (“Riverbend”) and the Oak Grove Water Supply Corporation 

(“Member Entity”).  

 

Recitals 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend and Member Entity previously entered into that Water 

Distribution and Supply Contract dated ________, 2020 (“Contract”); and 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend and Member Entity desire to amend the Contract to add 

language to Section 3(a) of the Contract regarding Member Entity’s receipt of Texas Water 

Development Board funding and application of said funding to the amount Member Entity owes 

under the Contract. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, Riverbend and Member Entity, for and in consideration of 

the recitals set forth above and terms and conditions below, agree as follows: 

 

1. Texas Water Development Board Grant.  Section 3(a) of the Contract shall be amended 

to add the following language:   

 

Member Entity is the recipient of a Texas Water Development Board grant in the amount 

of $300,000.00 (“TWDB grant”).  The TWDB grant will be immediately applied towards 

Member Entity’s portion of the Planned Improvements.  Member Entity’s Minimum 

Monthly Payment shall be reduced on a pro rata basis based upon application of the 

TWDB grant towards Member Entity’s portion of the Planned Improvements.  

 

2. General Terms and Conditions.   

 

(a) The recitals above are true and correct and incorporated herein for all purposes.  

 

(b) In the event of any inconsistencies between the Contract and this First Amendment, 

the terms of this First Amendment shall control.   

 

(c) All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the same meanings as 

defined in the Contract. 

 

(d) Except as expressly set forth in this First Amendment, the Contract otherwise is 

unmodified and remains in full force and effect.  Each reference in the Contract to 

itself shall be deemed also to refer to this First Amendment. 

 

(e) This First Amendment may be executed in duplicate counterparts, each of which will 

be deemed an original. 

 

(f) Each of the Parties represents and warrants that it has the right, power, legal capacity, 

and authority to enter into and perform its respective obligations under this First 

Amendment. 

 

108



Page 2 of 2 

(g) This First Amendment shall become effective upon the last date of execution by the 

Parties hereto. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto, acting under authority of their respective 
governing bodies, have caused this First Amendment to be duly executed as follows: 

 

 
     RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT 

       

    By:  ____________________________________   

Printed Name:  Kyle Dooley, P.E. 

Title: Executive Director/CEO 

Date:  

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

OAK GROVE WATER SUPPLY 
CORPORATION 

       

                                                                 By: ___________________________________ 

 

 Printed Name: Ricky M. Wilson 

 Title: General Manager 

 Date:  

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

109


